
09402-002     587704.1

RIVER PLANTATION MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING 

Notice is hereby given to all interested members of the public that the Board of 
Directors of the captioned district will hold a public meeting at 610 River Plantation Drive, 
Conroe, Texas 77302.

The meeting will be held at 6:30 p.m. on Wednesday, January 22, 2025. 

The subject of the meeting is to consider and act on the following: 

1. Minutes of the meeting(s) of Board of Directors 

2. Receive comments from the Public 

3. Financial and bookkeeping matters including: 

a. Bookkeeper’s report 
b. Depository Pledge Agreement with Central Bank 
c. Tax Assessor-Collectors’ report 
d. Review of investments 
e. Payment of District bills 

4. Audit Report  

5. Resolution Affirming Review of Investment Policy, Strategies and Objectives and 
list of approved brokers/dealers 

6. Park maintenance matters 

7. Operator’s Report 

8. Engineer’s Report 

9. Order Adopting Residence Homestead Exemption for Persons Sixty-Five or Older 
or Disabled 

10. Order Rescinding and Adopting Additional Meeting Places Outside District 

11. Violation of District rules; Public hearing for violation of District rules and 
damage to District property; assessment of penalties 

12. Executive (closed) Session Pursuant to Texas Government Code Chapter 551 as 
necessary 

13. Pending business 

_____________________________________  
J. Davis Bonham, Jr., Attorney for the District 



















































































































  

09402-002     587897.1 

DEPOSITORY PLEDGE AGREEMENT 

This Depository Pledge Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into on January 22, 2025  
by and between RIVER PLANTATION MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT (“District”), a 
conservation and reclamation district created and operating pursuant to Article XVI, Section 59 
of the Constitution of the State of Texas and Chapters 49 and 54 of the Texas Water Code, as 
amended, and CENTRAL BANK (“Bank”), a state chartered financial institution doing banking 
business in the State of Texas. 

The District has selected the Bank as a depository for certain of its funds in demand 
deposits and/or interest-bearing time deposits entitled as follows: 

Account Name(s)  Type of Account  Account Number 

RIVER PLANTATION 
MUNICIPAL UTILITY 
DISTRICT   
 

 _______________  ___________________ 
 

  _______________ 

_______________ 

 ___________________ 
 
___________________ 

and such additional accounts as the District may from time to time designate, and the Bank desires 
to be the depository of such funds. 

The District has selected the Bank as a depository for certain of its funds, and the Bank 
desires to be the depository of such funds. Pursuant to law and the District’s Investment Policy, 
the Bank is required to secure the amount of public funds deposited by the District in the Bank to 
the extent that such funds are not insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or its 
successors or assigns (the “FDIC”) (such uninsured funds referred to hereafter as the 
“Collateralized Funds”) by pledging securities (the “Approved Securities”) approved by the 
Board of Directors of the District which comply with the Public Funds Collateral Act, Chapter 
2257, Texas Government Code (the “Collateral Act”). Pursuant to the Collateral Act, the value of 
a surety bond is its face value, and the value of an investment security is its market value. The 
Approved Securities pledged to secure the Collateralized Funds must have an aggregate market 
value that at all times exceeds 100% of the Collateralized Funds of the District on deposit with 
the Bank plus any interest accrued thereon (the “Required Collateral Value”). 

The Bank has agreed to pledge Approved Securities solely for the benefit of the District’s 
Collateralized Funds and has agreed to place the Approved Securities for safekeeping in a 
custodial account at the Federal Reserve Bank, a trust/safekeeping department of a commercial 
bank, or at an independent third-party institution not owned or controlled by the Bank or its 
holding company (the “Safekeeping Institution,” whether one or more). 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants contained 
in this Agreement, the District and the Bank agree as follows: 



 2 
09402-002     587897.1 

Section 1. TYPE OF COLLATERAL; PLEDGE OF SECURITY; GRANT OF 
SECURITY INTEREST. The Bank agrees that the Collateralized Funds of the District on 
deposit with the Bank shall be secured in an amount equal to the Required Collateral Value (the 
“Collateral”). Approved Securities which may be pledged as collateral are securities defined as 
“eligible securities” in Section 2257.002, Texas Government Code. Additional Approved 
Securities include those securities in which a public entity may invest under the Public Funds 
Investment Act, Chapter 2256, Texas Government Code (the “Investment Act”) and that are 
authorized by the District’s Investment Policy, including specifically interest-bearing banking 
deposits authorized under Section 2256.009 (a)(8), Texas Government Code. 

Investments with minimum required ratings do not qualify as authorized investments 
during the period the investment does not have the minimum rating. Notwithstanding anything to 
the contrary provided above, Bank agrees that investments prohibited by Chapter 2270, Texas 
Government Code, as well as those prohibited by Section 2256.009 (b), Texas Government Code, 
may not be used as Collateral. 

The Bank acknowledges that the District prefers that the Collateral be pledged solely to 
and held solely on account of the District, and the Bank agrees to accommodate this preference if 
practicable. In the event that the Bank cannot accommodate this preference due to the 
denomination of the security to be pledged, the Bank agrees that it will not pledge portions of any 
single security in such a manner that the total value of the portions pledged exceeds the market 
value of such security. Nor will Bank cause or permit the sharing, splitting or co-tenancy of that 
portion of the Collateral pledged to secure funds of the District. The Bank hereby grants the 
District a security interest in the Collateral. 

Section 2. SAFEKEEPING PROVISIONS. The Safekeeping Institution, by a separate 
agreement with the Bank (the “Safekeeping Agreement”), has agreed to hold the Collateral in 
safekeeping to secure the deposits of the customers of the Bank, including the District, pursuant to 
the terms of the Safekeeping Agreement. The Bank represents and warrants to the District that no 
terms of the Safekeeping Agreement impair or deprive the District of its full rights under this 
Agreement and that the Bank will not enter into any safekeeping agreement which will have such 
effect on the District. 

Section 3. INSTRUCTIONS REGARDING COLLATERAL. Until the District has the 
right to sell the Collateral pursuant to Section 10 of this Agreement, the Safekeeping Institution 
may act only in accordance with the joint written instructions of the Bank and the District. The 
names and specimen signatures of individuals authorized to act on behalf of the District are listed 
in Addendum A to this Agreement and the names and specimen signatures of individuals 
authorized to act on behalf of the Bank are listed in Addendum B to this Agreement. Either the 
District or the Bank may add or remove names from their respective list of authorized individuals 
without the consent of the other party at any time by providing the other party and the Safekeeping 
Institution with a replacement notice. In the event that the Safekeeping Institution is the Federal 
Reserve Bank, this Section shall not apply, and the Safekeeping Agreement between the Bank 
and the Federal Reserve Bank shall govern actions by the Federal Reserve Bank with respect to 
the Collateral. 



 3 
09402-002     587897.1 

Section 4. SUBSTITUTIONS AND WITHDRAWALS OF COLLATERAL. The Bank 
understands and agrees that the District has the right to change the Approved Securities identified 
in this Agreement by providing the Bank and the Safekeeping Institution with written notice of any 
such change in Approved Securities. The Bank agrees that within thirty (30) days of the Bank’s 
receipt of such written notice of changes in the Approved Securities, the Bank will either (a) comply 
with the changes or (b) notify the District in writing of the Bank’s objection to the changes and, if 
appropriate, of the Bank’s intent to terminate this Agreement. 

In addition, if the aggregate market value of the Collateral held by the Safekeeping 
Institution at any time exceeds the Required Collateral Value, the Bank may withdraw any excess 
Collateral by providing the Safekeeping Institution with a withdrawal notice signed by an individual 
authorized by both the Bank and the District. The District agrees to sign the withdrawal notice if the 
value of the remaining Collateral equals or exceeds the Required Collateral Value. Additionally, the 
Bank may substitute Collateral held by the Safekeeping Institution at any time by providing the 
Safekeeping Institution with a substitution notice signed by individuals authorized by both the Bank 
and the District. The District agrees to sign the substitution notice if the securities to be substituted 
are Approved Securities and the value of the Collateral following the substitution equals or exceeds 
the Required Collateral Value. 

Section 5. BANK STATEMENTS AND REPORTS RELATING TO PLEDGED 
COLLATERAL. At the time of the pledge, substitution and release of any of the Collateral, the 
Bank shall execute and deliver contemporaneously with the execution of this Agreement to the 
District a statement describing the Collateral deposited to or withdrawn from the Safekeeping 
Institution and held pursuant to this Agreement. This statement must include the par value, market 
value as of the date of the statement and maturity date of the Collateral. 

Upon request of the District, the Bank also agrees to furnish to the District a statement 
describing the Collateral held in safekeeping by the Safekeeping Institution (the “Collateral 
Report”). The Collateral Report must include a description of the securities pledged, the CUSIP 
number of each security, the par value, the market value, and the maturity date of the Collateral as 
of the date of the current Collateral Report, and additionally, in connection with the initial Collateral 
Report, such information as of the date of the pledge of such collateral. The Bank also agrees to 
generate an updated Collateral Report within three (3) business days of receipt of a written request 
from the District. 

Section 6. BANK’S FINANCIAL POSITION. The Bank will provide to the District 
upon request a statement of the Bank’s financial position on a quarterly basis. The Bank also will 
provide to the District upon request a copy of the Bank’s annual financial statement. 

Section 7. REPRESENTATIONS OF THE BANK. The Bank represents to the District 
that: 

a. the Bank is the sole legal and actual owner of the securities utilized to collateralize 
District deposits; 



 4 
09402-002     587897.1 

b. no other security interest has been, nor will be, granted in the securities or the 
portions thereof utilized to collateralize District deposits during the period of the 
pledge to the District; 

c. the Bank is covered for all uncollateralized District deposits up to the maximum 
FDIC insurance limit; 

d. pursuant to Chapter 2271, Texas Government Code, the Bank verifies that it does 
not boycott Israel and agrees it will not boycott Israel through the term of the 
Agreement; 

e. pursuant to Section 2252.152 of the Texas Government Code, the Bank hereby 
verifies that it is not engaged in active business operations with Sudan, Iran, or a 
foreign terrorist organization. For purposes of this Agreement, the phrase “foreign 
terrorist organization” means an organization designated as a foreign terrorist 
organization by the United States secretary of state as authorized by 8 U.S.C. 
Section 1189;  

f. pursuant to Chapter 2252, Texas Government Code, Bank represents and certifies 
that, at the time of execution of this Agreement neither Bank, nor any wholly 
owned subsidiary, majority-owned subsidiary, parent company or affiliate of the 
same, is a company listed by the Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts under 
Sections 2270.0201 or 2252.153 of the Texas Government Code; 

g. pursuant to Section 2274.002, Texas Government Code (as added by Senate Bill 
13, 87th Texas Legislature, Regular Session), as amended, Bank hereby verifies 
that Bank, including a wholly owned subsidiary, majority-owned subsidiary, 
parent company or affiliate of the same, does not boycott energy companies, and 
will not boycott energy companies during the term of this Agreement. As used in 
the foregoing verification, “boycott energy companies” shall have the meaning 
assigned to the term “boycott energy company” in Section 809.001, Texas 
Government Code; 

h. pursuant to Section 2274.002, Texas Government Code (as added by Senate Bill 
19, 87th Texas Legislature, Regular Session), as amended, Bank verifies that Bank, 
including a wholly owned subsidiary, majority-owned subsidiary, parent company 
or affiliate of the same, (i) does not have a practice, policy, guidance or directive 
that discriminates against a firearm entity or firearm trade association, and (ii) will 
not discriminate against a firearm entity or firearm trade association during the 
term of the Agreement. As used in the foregoing verifications, "discriminate 
against a firearm entity or trade association" shall have the meaning assigned to 
such term in Section 2274.001(3), Texas Government Code; 

i. pursuant to Section 2252.908, Texas Government Code, the Form 1295 filing 
requirement does apply to this Agreement and a Form 1295 is required; 



 5 
09402-002     587897.1 

j. this Agreement is made pursuant to and is duly authorized by the Board of Directors 
of the Bank, that this Agreement has been approved by the Bank’s Board of Directors 
or the loan committee authorized to approve depository pledge agreements and that 
such approval is reflected in the minutes of the meeting of the Bank’s Board of 
Directors or loan committee as appropriate. A true and correct copy of the minutes of 
the meeting of the Bank’s Board of Directors or loan committee at which this 
Agreement was approved and accepted or such other written certification of approval 
as is deemed sufficient by the District is attached to this Agreement as Addendum 
C and incorporated for all purposes; and 

f. this Agreement was made an official record of the Bank as of the date of its 
approval by the Bank and will continue to be held as an official record of the Bank 
during its term. 

Section 8. REPRESENTATIONS OF THE DISTRICT. The District represents to the 
Bank that it will provide the Bank with written notice of changes in the Approved Securities 
within seven (7) business days of adoption of the same by the District’s Board of Directors. The 
District agrees that the Bank is not obligated to comply with any new requirements as to Approved 
Securities until amended document(s) is/are received by the Bank. 

Section 9. BANK’S DUTIES AND OBLIGATIONS. The Bank agrees to perform all of 
the duties and obligations required of a depository for the District under the laws of the State of 
Texas, and, upon presentation, agrees to pay all checks drawn on it by the duly authorized 
representatives of the District against available funds of the District on demand deposit. At the 
expiration of the term of this Agreement, the Bank agrees to turn over to its successor all funds, 
property and things of value held by it as a depository. 

Section 10. BANK DEFAULT AND REMEDIES. If the Bank fails to perform all of its 
obligations set out in this Agreement between the Bank and the District or if it is ruled “bankrupt,” 
“insolvent,” or “failed” by Federal Banking Regulators, then Bank will be considered in default under 
this Agreement. In the event of such default, failure or insolvency of the Bank, the District shall be 
deemed to have vested full title to all of the Collateral pursuant to this Agreement. The District may 
sell all or any part of the Collateral at public or private sale after providing the Bank at least three (3) 
business days prior written notice and an opportunity to cure the default. In the event that portions of 
the Collateral are pledged to depositors other than the District, the Bank or any receiver for or 
successor of the Bank agrees to sell such Collateral on behalf of all secured parties. 

The proceeds of any such sale must be applied to satisfy any indebtedness owed by the Bank to 
the District, including accrued interest, expenses related to the liquidation transaction, including 
legal fees, which are incurred by the District (and to the other depositors who have a security 
interest in the security sold, if any,) and any excess proceeds over the value of the defaulted 
amount of the matured investment, shall be returned to the Bank. In the event that the proceeds 
are not sufficient to satisfy the indebtedness of the Bank to all depositors who have a security 
interest in the Collateral, the Bank, its receiver or successor agrees to distribute the proceeds of 
the sale among the secured parties in proportion that the indebtedness of the Bank to each secured 
party bears to the total indebtedness owed by the Bank to all parties who have a security interest 
in the Collateral. This power of sale is in addition to other remedies the District may have pursuant 



 6 
09402-002     587897.1 

to this Agreement and applicable law and is without prejudice to the District’s rights to maintain 
any suit in any court for redress of injuries sustained by the District under this Agreement. 

Section 11. NON-ASSIGNABILITY. This Agreement is not assignable in whole or in 
part but is binding on the parties hereto, their successors and assigns. 

Section 12. TERMINATION. This Agreement may be terminated by either the Bank or 
the District by giving thirty (30) days prior written notice to the other party. 

Section 13. APPLICABLE LAWS; OTHER AGREEMENTS. This Agreement will be 
governed by the laws of the State of Texas. If any accounts of the District with the Bank are also 
subject to additional agreements with the Bank, the Bank agrees to attach copies of such 
agreements to this Agreement as Addendum D and such agreements shall be incorporated for all 
purposes, provided however, that the provisions of this Agreement shall govern in the event of 
any conflict between the provisions in such other agreements and those of this Agreement. 
Moreover, if any such agreement is a depository pledge agreement, this Agreement shall 
supersede such prior agreement. 

Section 14. SAFEKEEPING FEES. Any and all fees associated with the safekeeping of 
Collateral which the Safekeeping Institution shall charge shall be borne by the Bank and not 
charged back to the District. 

Section 15. MISCELLANEOUS. The headings in this Agreement are for convenience 
of reference only and should not be used in interpreting this Agreement. If any provision of this 
Agreement is determined to be illegal or unenforceable under applicable law, that provision 
should be deemed reformed so as to be enforceable to the extent permitted by applicable law, or, 
if such reformation is not possible, then this Agreement should be read as if such provision was 
never a part of it, and the remainder of this Agreement will be enforceable. 

This Agreement represents the final agreement of the parties and may not be contradicted 
by evidence of prior, contemporaneous or subsequent oral agreements of the parties. 

Notices required to be given under this Agreement must be addressed as set forth below 
each party’s signature to this Agreement, and will be considered effective upon actual receipt by 
the addressee or upon refusal of delivery during the normal business hours of the addressee. 

Section 16. COUNTERPARTS. This Agreement may be executed in multiple 
counterparts, each of which will be considered an original. 

 



 

 7 
09402-002     587897.1 

WITNESS the execution hereof this January 22, 2025. 

 
       DISTRICT: 
    

RIVER PLANTATION MUNICIPAL 
UTILITY DISTRICT  
 
 

 
       By:       
               President, Board of Directors 
ATTEST: 

  
 Secretary, Board of Directors 

 

 



 

 8 
09402-002     587897.1 

BANK: CENTRAL BANK  

By:    

Printed Name:   

Title:   

ATTEST: 

 

By:   

Printed Name: ________________________ 

Title:  _______________________________ 

 

 

 

Mailing Address of Central Bank: 

Central Bank of Houston 
11201 Clay Road 
Houston TX 77041 
 



 

 9 
09402-002     587897.1 

ADDENDUM A 

At its Board meeting on January 22, 2025, the Board of Directors of RIVER 

PLANTATION MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT  (“District”) designated the following 

individuals as authorized representatives empowered to direct CENTRAL BANK (the “Bank”) 

and _______________________ (the “Safekeeping Institution”) with regard to collateral pledges, 

releases and substitutions in the safekeeping account established for the District. Such pledges, 

releases and substitutions shall follow procedures set forth in the Depository Pledge Agreement 

between the District and the Bank. 

Authorized Representative’s Signature  Name and Title 

_________________________________  ___________________________________ 

_________________________________  ___________________________________ 

_________________________________  ___________________________________ 

_________________________________  ___________________________________ 

_________________________________  ___________________________________ 

        
 RIVER PLANTATION MUNICIPAL 

UTILITY DISTRICT  
 
 
 
BY:  ________________________________ 
         Secretary, Board of Directors 
 

  
 

CENTRAL BANK       

Accepted:   

Printed Name: ________________________ 

Title:_______________________________ 



 

 10 
09402-002     587897.1 

ADDENDUM B 
 

CENTRAL BANK (“Bank”) has designated the following officers as specifically 

authorized to instruct RIVER PLANTATION MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT  (“District”) 

and _____________________________ (“Safekeeping Institution”) with regard to collateral 

pledges, releases and substitutions in the safekeeping account established for the District. Such 

pledges, releases and substitutions shall follow procedures set forth in the Depository Pledge 

Agreement between the District and the Bank. 

Authorized Officer’s Signature  Name and Title 

   

   

   

   

CENTRAL BANK 
 

  By:        

  Printed Name: _______________________ 

Title:  ______________________________ 



 

 11 
09402-002     587897.1 

Addendum C 

MINUTES OF MEETING OF 
BANK BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
APPROVING THE AGREEMENT 



 

 12 
09402-002     587897.1 

Addendum D 

ADDITIONAL AGREEMENTS BETWEEN  
DISTRICT AND THE BANK 

 
 
 

None. 

 

 
 





01/01/2025 03:17:20       4718965                            TAX COLLECTION SYSTEM                                            
TC298-D    SELECTION: DEPOSIT                                 DEPOSIT DISTRIBUTION                          INCLUDES AG ROLLBACK
       RECEIPT DATE:  ALL                               FROM: 12/01/2024 THRU 12/31/2024
     LOCATION: ALL                                      JURISDICTION: 0412 RIVER PLANTATION MUD

                TAX              LEVY      DISCOUNT       PENALTY           TIF         DISBURSE                   OTHER         REFUND          PAYMENT
 YEAR  FUND     RATE             PAID         GIVEN      INTEREST        AMOUNT            TOTAL      ATTORNEY      FEES         AMOUNT           AMOUNT

 2024 M & O   .410000      507,911.74           .00           .00           .00       507,911.74           .00       .00            .00       507,911.74
      I & S   .250000      309,702.22           .00           .00           .00       309,702.22           .00       .00            .00       309,702.22
      TOTAL   .660000      817,613.96           .00           .00           .00       817,613.96           .00       .00            .00       817,613.96

 2023 M & O   .400000          820.74           .00        310.09           .00         1,130.83        532.09       .00            .00         1,662.92
      I & S   .250000          512.98           .00        193.80           .00           706.78           .00       .00            .00           706.78
      TOTAL   .650000        1,333.72           .00        503.89           .00         1,837.61        532.09       .00            .00         2,369.70

 2022 M & O   .270000          148.47-          .00           .00           .00           148.47-          .00       .00            .00           148.47-
      I & S   .250000          137.48-          .00           .00           .00           137.48-          .00       .00            .00           137.48-
      TOTAL   .520000          285.95-          .00           .00           .00           285.95-          .00       .00            .00           285.95-

 ALL  M & O                508,584.01           .00        310.09           .00       508,894.10        532.09       .00            .00       509,426.19
 ALL  I & S                310,077.72           .00        193.80           .00       310,271.52           .00       .00            .00       310,271.52
 ALL  TOTAL                818,661.73           .00        503.89           .00       819,165.62        532.09       .00            .00       819,697.71

 DLQ  M & O                    672.27           .00        310.09           .00           982.36        532.09       .00            .00         1,514.45
 DLQ  I & S                    375.50           .00        193.80           .00           569.30           .00       .00            .00           569.30
 DLQ  TOTAL                  1,047.77           .00        503.89           .00         1,551.66        532.09       .00            .00         2,083.75

 CURR M & O                507,911.74           .00           .00           .00       507,911.74           .00       .00            .00       507,911.74
 CURR I & S                309,702.22           .00           .00           .00       309,702.22           .00       .00            .00       309,702.22
 CURR TOTAL                817,613.96           .00           .00           .00       817,613.96           .00       .00            .00       817,613.96

PAGE: 1



01/01/2025 02:27:42                4718965             TAX COLLECTION SYSTEM                                        
TC298-N  SELECTION: DEPOSIT                            DEPOSIT DISTRIBUTION                      INCLUDES AG ROLLBACK
                                                SUMMARY OF PAYMENTS AND REVERSALS
                                                  FROM: 12/01/2024 THRU 12/31/2024
                                           JURISDICTION:  412 RIVER PLANTATION MUD

                                          EFF                LEVY      DISCOUNT       PENALTY                                  REFUND           PAYMENT
YEAR DEPOSIT      ACCOUNT NUMBER         YR/MO               PAID         GIVEN      INTEREST      ATTORNEY CAUSE /REV         AMOUNT            AMOUNT

                  2023 TOTAL                             2,314.95          0.00        503.89        532.09                      0.00          3,350.93
                  2024 TOTAL                           820,617.14          0.00          0.00          0.00                      0.00        820,617.14

                  TOTAL PAYMENTS                       822,932.09          0.00        503.89        532.09                      0.00        823,968.07

                  2022 TOTAL                               285.95-         0.00          0.00          0.00                      0.00            285.95-
                  2023 TOTAL                               981.23-         0.00          0.00          0.00                      0.00            981.23-
                  2024 TOTAL                             3,003.18-         0.00          0.00          0.00                      0.00          3,003.18-

                  TOTAL REVERSALS                        4,270.36-         0.00          0.00          0.00                      0.00          4,270.36-

                  TOTAL FOR UNIT                       818,661.73          0.00        503.89        532.09                      0.00        819,697.71

PAGE: 1



Page 1

Report run on: January 2, 2025 10:12 AM

For Deposit Dates 12/01/2024 thru 12/31/2024 as of 01/02/2025

Held Funds By Deposit Date - Property Tax File

Ver: 1.39

ACTGL_TU_REMIT_DDA.rdf

Tax Unit M & O Total I & S Total Fee Total Total

Grand Total

Deposit Date TIF Levy TIF Interest



01/01/2025 02:33:3      4718967                       TAX COLLECTION SYSTEM                                           
TC168                                                TAX COLLECTOR MONTHLY REPORT               INCLUDES AG ROLLBACK
                                                   FROM 12/01/2024 TO 12/31/2024

 FISCAL START: 10/01/2024 END: 09/30/2025  JURISDICTION: 0412 RIVER PLANTATION MUD

                 CERT TAXABLE VALUE         ADJUSTMENTS         ADJ TAX VALUE      TAX RATE          TAX LEVY            PAID ACCTS
                 ------------------        --------------       -------------    -------------     -------------        -------------

CURRENT YEAR            216,972,524           15,237,773           232,210,297  0   00.660000       1,532,670.49            730

                 ------------------        --------------       -------------    -------------     -------------        -------------

     -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

YEAR          TAXES DUE         MONTH ADJ    ADJUSTMENT YTD          LEVY PAID           PAID YTD            BALANCE  COLL %    YTD UNCOLL

     -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

2024       1,432,101.18         15,331.64-       100,569.31          817,613.96         909,449.82          623,220.67  59.34        0.00
2023          46,787.17            818.76-         1,116.99-           1,333.72           7,215.12           38,455.06  15.80        0.00
2022          17,931.54            155.98-           156.02-             285.95-          1,916.55           15,858.97  10.78        0.00
2021           4,340.76             78.97             78.97                0.00               0.00            4,419.73               0.00
2020           3,061.33             80.55             80.55                0.00               0.00            3,141.88               0.00
2019           2,050.01             79.99             79.99                0.00               0.00            2,130.00               0.00
2018           1,702.57               .00              0.00                0.00               0.00            1,702.57               0.00
2017           1,415.90               .00              0.00                0.00               0.00            1,415.90               0.00
2016           1,119.69               .00              0.00                0.00               0.00            1,119.69               0.00
2015             662.76               .00              0.00                0.00               0.00              662.76               0.00
2014             304.19               .00              0.00                0.00               0.00              304.19               0.00
2013             264.93               .00              0.00                0.00               0.00              264.93               0.00
2012              12.80               .00              0.00                0.00               0.00               12.80               0.00
2011              16.00               .00              0.00                0.00               0.00               16.00               0.00
2010              12.40               .00              0.00                0.00               0.00               12.40               0.00
2009              12.40               .00              0.00                0.00               0.00               12.40               0.00
2008              12.44               .00              0.00                0.00               0.00               12.44               0.00
2007              12.62               .00              0.00                0.00               0.00               12.62               0.00
2006              13.54               .00              0.00                0.00               0.00               13.54               0.00
2005              18.02               .00              0.00                0.00               0.00               18.02               0.00
2004              19.24               .00              0.00                0.00               0.00               19.24               0.00
2003               0.00               .00              0.00                0.00               0.00                0.00               0.00

****       1,511,871.49         16,066.87-        99,535.81          818,661.73         918,581.49          692,825.81               0.00

CURR       1,432,101.18         15,331.64-       100,569.31          817,613.96         909,449.82          623,220.67               0.00
DELQ          79,770.31            735.23-         1,033.50-           1,047.77           9,131.67           69,605.14               0.00

PAGE: 1



 

09402-002     587927.1 

ANNUAL FILING AFFIDAVIT 
 
 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS   § 

 § 
COUNTY OF MONTGOMERY  § 
 
 

I,  Julie Gilmer, President of River Plantation Municipal Utility District, hereby 
swear, or affirm, that the district named above has reviewed and approved at a meeting of the 
Board of Directors of the District on January 22, 2025, its annual audit report for the fiscal 
year or period ended September 30, 2024 and that copies of the annual audit report have been 
filed in the district office located at 2727 Allen Parkway, Suite 1100, Houston, Texas 77019. 
 

The annual filing affidavit and the attached copy of the annual audit report are 
being submitted to the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality in satisfaction of all 
annual filing requirements within Section 49.194 of the Texas Water Code. 
 
Dated:  January 22,  2025. 
 
 

By:         
Julie Gilmer, President of River 
Plantation Municipal Utility District 

 
 
 

Sworn to and subscribed to before me on this _______________________, 2025, 
by Julie Gilmer, President of River Plantation Municipal Utility District, by and on behalf of 
said District. 
 
 
 
  

Notary Public, State of Texas 
 



RIVER PLANTATION MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
Montgomery County, Texas 

January 22, 2025

Mark C. Eyring
Mark C. Eyring, CPA, PLLC
12702 Century Drive, Suite C2
Stafford, Texas  77477     

Dear Mr. Eyring:

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements of River Plantation
Municipal Utility District (the "District"), which comprise the respective financial position of the governmental activities

and each fund as of September 30, 2024, and the respective changes in financial position for the year then ended, and
the related notes to the financial statements for the purpose of expressing  opinions as to whether the financial statements
are presented fairly, in all material respects, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America (U.S. GAAP).

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material.  Items are considered
material, regardless of size, if they involve an omission or misstatement of accounting information that, in light of
surrounding circumstances, makes it probable that the judgment of a reasonable person relying on the information would 
be changed or influenced by the omission or misstatement.  An omission or misstatement that is monetarily small in
amount could be considered material as a result of qualitative factors.

We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, as of January 22, 2025, the following representations made to you
during your audit:
           

Financial Statements

1. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement letter.

2. The financial statements referred to above are fairly presented in conformity with U. S. generally accepted
accounting principles and include all properly classified funds and other financial information of the District.

3. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

4. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and
detect fraud.

5. Significant assumptions we used in making accounting estimates, including those measured at fair value,
are reasonable.

6. Related party relationships and transactions, including revenues, expenditures/expenses, loans, transfers,
leasing arrangements, and guarantees, and amounts receivable from or payable to related parties have been
appropriately accounted for and disclosed in accordance with U.S. GAAP.

7. Adjustments or disclosures have been made for all events, including instances of noncompliance,
subsequent to the date of the financial statements that would require adjustment to or disclosure in the
financial statements.  

8. The District's bookkeeper has reviewed and approved the adjusting journal entries you have proposed in
the course of your audit.



Mark C. Eyring
Mark C. Eyring, CPA, PLLC
January 22, 2025
Page 2

9. The effects of all known actual or possible litigation, claims, and assessments have been accounted for and
disclosed in accordance with U.S. GAAP. 

10. Guarantees, whether written or oral, under which the District  is contingently liable, if any, have been
properly recorded or disclosed.

Information Provided

11. We have made available to you all:

a. Access to all information, of which we are aware, that is relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements, such as records (including information obtained from
outside of the general and subsidiary ledgers), documentation, and other matters.

b. Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit.

c. Unrestricted access to persons within the District from whom you determined it necessary to
obtain audit evidence.

d. Minutes of the District's meetings or summaries of actions of recent meetings for which minutes
have not yet been prepared.

12. All material transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the financial
statements.

13. We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be
materially misstated as a result of fraud.

14. We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud that affects the District and involves:

a. Management,

b. Employees who have significant roles in internal control, or

c. Others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.

15. We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the District’s financial
statements communicated by employees, former employees, regulators, or others.

16. We have no knowledge of instances of noncompliance or suspected noncompliance with provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, or grant agreements, or waste or abuse, whose effects should be considered
when preparing financial statements. 

17. We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible litigation, claims, and assessments whose effects
should be considered when preparing the financial statements. 

18. We have disclosed to you the names of the District’s related parties and all the related party relationships
and transactions, including any side agreements. 

Government-specific

19. There have been no communications from regulatory agencies concerning noncompliance with, or
deficiencies in, financial reporting practices.



Mark C. Eyring
Mark C. Eyring, CPA, PLLC
January 22, 2025
Page 3

20. We have identified to you any previous audits, attestation engagements, and other studies related to the
objectives of the audit and whether related recommendations have been implemented.

21. We have identified to you any investigations or legal proceedings that have been initiated with respect to
the period under audit.

22. The District  has no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or classification of
assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and fund balance or net
position.

23. We are responsible for compliance with the laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts and grant
agreements applicable to us, including tax or debt limits and debt contracts, and legal and contractual
provisions for reporting specific activities in separate funds.

24. We have identified and disclosed to you all instances of identified and suspected fraud and noncompliance
with provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements that we believe have a material effect
on the  financial statements.

25. There are no violations or possible violations of budget ordinances, laws and regulations (including those
pertaining to adopting, approving, and amending budgets), provisions of contracts and grant agreements,
tax or debt limits, and any related debt covenants whose effects should be considered for disclosure in the
financial statements, or as a basis for recording a loss contingency, or for reporting on noncompliance.

26. As part of your audit, you assisted with preparation of the financial statements and disclosures. We
acknowledge our responsibility as it relates to those nonaudit services, including that we assume all
management responsibilities; oversee the services by designating an individual who possesses suitable skill,
knowledge, or experience; evaluate the adequacy and results of the services performed; and accept
responsibility for the results of the services. We have reviewed, approved, and accepted responsibility for
those financial statements and disclosures. 

27. The District  has satisfactory title to all owned assets, and there are no liens or encumbrances on such assets
nor has any asset been pledged as collateral.

28. The District  has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that would have a material effect on
the financial statements in the event of noncompliance.

29. The financial statements include all component units, appropriately present majority equity interests in
legally separate organizations and joint ventures with an equity interest, and properly disclose all other joint
ventures and other related organizations.

30. The financial statements properly classify all funds and activities in accordance with GASB No. 34 , as
amended.

31. All funds that meet the quantitative criteria in GASB Nos. 34 and 37 for presentation as major are
identified and presented as such and all other funds that are presented as major are particularly important
to financial statement users.

32. Components of net position (net investment in capital assets; restricted; and unrestricted) and classifications
of fund balance (nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned) are properly classified
and, if applicable, approved.

33. Provisions for uncollectible receivables have been properly identified and recorded.



Mark C. Eyring
Mark C. Eyring, CPA, PLLC
January 22, 2025
Page 4

34. Expenses have been appropriately classified in or allocated to functions and programs in the statement of
activities, and allocations have been made on a reasonable basis.

35. Revenues are appropriately classified in the statement of activities within program revenues, general
revenues, contributions to term or permanent endowments, or contributions to permanent fund principal.

36. Interfund, internal, and intra-entity activity and balances have been appropriately classified and reported.

37. Deposits and investment securities and derivative instruments are properly classified as to risk and are
properly disclosed.

38. Capital assets, including infrastructure and intangible assets, are properly capitalized, reported, and, if
applicable, depreciated or amortized.

39. We have appropriately disclosed the District’s policy regarding whether to first apply restricted or
unrestricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted
net position is available and have determined that net position is properly recognized under the policy.

40. We are following our established accounting policy regarding which resources (that is, restricted,
committed, assigned, or unassigned) are considered to be spent first for expenditures for which more than
one resource classification is available. That policy determines the fund balance classifications for financial
reporting purposes.

41. We acknowledge our responsibility for the required supplementary information (RSI). The RSI is measured
and presented within prescribed guidelines and the methods of measurement and presentation have not
changed from those used in the prior period. We have disclosed to you any significant assumptions and
interpretations underlying the measurement and presentation of the RSI.

42. With respect to the supplementary information required by the Texas Commission on Environmental
Quality (TCEQ): 

a. We acknowledge our responsibility for presenting the TCEQ supplementary information in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
and we believe the TCEQ supplementary information, including its form and content, is fairly
presented in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America. The methods of measurement and presentation of the TCEQ supplementary
information  have not changed from those used in the prior period, and we have disclosed to
you any significant assumptions or interpretations underlying the measurement and
presentation of the supplementary information.

b. If the TCEQ supplementary information is not presented with the audited financial statements,
we will make the audited financial statements readily available to the intended users of the
supplementary information no later than the date we issue the supplementary information and the
auditor’s report thereon.

Board of Directors
River Plantation Municipal Utility District

By: __________________________________
President, Board of Directors



DRAFT

                                                                   

RIVER PLANTATION MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT

MONTGOMERY COUNTY, TEXAS

ANNUAL AUDIT REPORT

SEPTEMBER 30, 2024



DRAFT

 C O N T E N T S

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 1-3

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 4-8

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION AND GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET 9

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND GOVERNMENTAL FUND REVENUES, 
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 10

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 11-20

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN 
FUND BALANCE, BUDGET AND ACTUAL, GENERAL FUND 21

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN 
FUND BALANCE, BUDGET AND ACTUAL, SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 22

SCHEDULE OF TEXAS SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
REQUIRED BY THE TEXAS COMMISSION ON ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 23

SCHEDULE OF SERVICES AND RATES 24-25

EXPENDITURES FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 26-27

ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN DEPOSITS, ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES 28

SCHEDULE OF TEMPORARY INVESTMENTS 29

TAXES LEVIED AND RECEIVABLE 30-31

LONG-TERM DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS, BY YEARS 32-34

ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN LONG-TERM BONDED DEBT 35

COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES,
GENERAL FUND 36

COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES,
DEBT SERVICE FUND 37

BOARD MEMBERS, KEY PERSONNEL AND CONSULTANTS 38-39



DRAFT

1

January 22, 2025

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Board of Directors
River Plantation Municipal

Utility District
Montgomery County, Texas

Opinions

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
River Plantation Municipal Utility District as of and for the year ended September 30, 2024, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise River Plantation Municipal Utility District’s basic financial statements
as listed in the table of contents.

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial
position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the River Plantation Municipal Utility District, as of
September 30, 2024, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows there of for the
year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

I conducted my audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. My
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of my report. I am required to be independent of River Plantation Municipal Utility District, and to
meet my other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to my audit. I believe
that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about River Plantation Municipal Utility District’s ability to
continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known
information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.



DRAFT

2

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued) 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinions. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, I exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. I obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of River Plantation
Municipal Utility District’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. I evaluate the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements. I conclude whether, in my judgment, there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about River Plantation Municipal Utility District’s
ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

I am required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that I identified during the
audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion and
analysis and budgetary comparison information be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing
the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. I have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge I obtained during my audit of the basic financial statements. I do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide me with sufficient evidence
to express an opinion or provide any assurance.



DRAFT

3

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

Supplementary Information

My audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise River
Plantation Municipal Utility District’s basic financial statements. The supplementary information on Pages 23 to 39 is
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements.  Such information is
the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the financial statements.  Except for the portion marked “unaudited,” the information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  In my opinion, the information is fairly
stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.  The supplementary information marked
“unaudited” has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and,
accordingly, I do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.  The accompanying supplementary information
includes financial data excerpted from prior year financial statements which were audited by my firm.

                                                                          



DRAFT

4

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Using this Annual Report

Within this section of the River Plantation Municipal Utility District (the "District") annual report, the District’s
Board of Directors provides narrative discussion and analysis of the financial activities of the District for the
fiscal year ended September 30, 2024.

The annual report consists of a series of financial statements plus additional supplemental information to the
financial statements as required by its state oversight agency, the Texas Commission on Environmental
Quality.  In accordance with required reporting standards, the District reports its financial activities as a
special-purpose government.  Special-purpose governments are governmental entities which engage in a
single governmental program.  In the District’s case, the single governmental program is provision of water
and sewer services.  The financial statements of special-purpose governments combine two types of financial
statements into one statement.  These two types of financial statements are the government-wide financial
statements and the fund financial statements.  The fund financial statements are presented on the left side
of the statements, a column for adjustments is to the right of the fund financial statements, and the
government-wide financial statements are presented to the right side of the adjustments column.  The
following sections describe the measurement focus of the two types of statements and the significant
differences in the information they provide.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The focus of government-wide financial statements is on the overall financial position and activities of the
District.  The District’s government-wide financial statements include the statement of net position and
statement of activities, which are prepared using accounting principles that are similar to commercial
enterprises.  The purpose of the statement of net position is to attempt to report all of the assets and liabilities
owned by the District.  The District reports all of its assets when it acquires or begins to maintain the assets
and reports all of its liabilities when they are incurred.  

The difference between the District’s total assets and total liabilities is labeled as net position and this
difference is similar to the total owners’ equity presented by a commercial enterprise. 

The purpose of the statement of activities is to present the revenues and expenses of the District.  Again, the
items presented on the statement of activities are measured in a manner similar to the approach used by a
commercial enterprise in that revenues are recognized when earned or established criteria are satisfied and
expenses are reported when incurred by the District.  Thus, revenues are reported even when they may not
be collected for several months or years after the end of the  accounting period and expenses are recorded
even though they may not have used cash during the current period.

Although the statement of activities looks different from a commercial enterprise’s income statement, the
financial statement is different only in format, not substance.  Whereas the bottom line in a commercial
enterprise is its net income, the District reports an amount described as change in net position, essentially the
same thing.

Fund Financial Statements  

Unlike government-wide financial statements, the focus of fund financial statements is directed to specific
activities of the District rather than the District as a whole.  Except for the General Fund, a specific fund is
established to satisfy managerial control over resources or to satisfy finance-related legal requirements
established by external parties or governmental statutes or regulations. 

Governmental fund financial statements consist of a balance sheet and statement of revenues, expenditures
and change in fund balances and are prepared on an accounting basis that is significantly different from that
used to prepare the government-wide financial statements.



DRAFT

5

In general, these financial statements have a short-term emphasis and, for the most part, measure and
account for cash and other assets that can easily be converted into cash.  For example, amounts reported
on the balance sheet include items such as cash and receivables collectible within a very short period of time,
but do not include capital assets such as land and water and sewer systems.  Fund liabilities include amounts
that are to be paid within a very short period after the end of the fiscal year.  The difference between a fund’s
total assets and total liabilities is labeled the fund balance, and generally indicates the amount that can be
used to finance the next fiscal year’s’ activities.  Likewise, the operating statement for governmental funds
reports only those revenues and expenditures that were collected in cash or paid with cash, respectively,
during the current period or very shortly after the end of the fiscal year.

Because the focus of the government-wide and fund financial statements are different, there are significant
differences between the totals presented in these financial statements.  For this reason, there is an analysis
in Note 3 of the notes to the financial statements that reconciles the total fund balances to the amount of net
position presented in the governmental activities column on the statement of net position.  Also, there is an
analysis in Note 3 of the notes to the financial statements that reconciles the total change in fund balances
for all governmental funds to the change in net position as reported in the governmental activities column in
the statement of activities.

Financial Analysis of the District as a Whole

Financial Analysis of the District as a Whole begins with an understanding of how financial resources flow
through the District’s funds.  Resources in the Capital Projects Fund are derived principally from proceeds of
the sale of bonds, and expenditures from this fund are subject to the Rules of the Texas Commission on
Environmental Quality.  Resources in the Debt Service Fund are derived principally from the collection of
property taxes and are used for the payment of tax collection costs and bond principal and interest. 
Resources in the General Fund are derived principally from property taxes and billings for water and sewer
services and are used to operate and maintain the system and to pay costs of administration of the District. 

Management has financial objectives for each of the District’s funds.  The financial objective for the Capital
Projects Fund is to spend the funds as necessary in accordance with the Rules of the Texas Commission on
Environmental Quality.  The financial objective for the General Fund is to keep the fund’s expenditures as low
as possible while ensuring that revenues are adequate to cover expenditures and maintaining the fund
balance that Management believes is prudent.  Management believes that these financial objectives were met
during the fiscal year.

  
Management believes that the required method of accounting for certain elements of the government-wide
financial statements makes the government-wide financial statements  as a whole not useful for financial
analysis.  In the government-wide financial statements, capital assets and depreciation expense have been
required to be recorded at historical cost.  Management’s policy is to maintain the District’s capital assets in
a condition greater than or equal to the condition required by regulatory authorities, and management does
not believe that depreciation expense is relevant to the management of the District.  In the government-wide
financial statements, property tax revenues are required to be recorded in the fiscal year for which the taxes
are levied, regardless of the year of collection.  Management believes that the cash basis method of
accounting for property taxes in the funds provides more useful financial information. 



DRAFT

6

The following required summaries of the District’s overall financial position and operations for the past two
years are based on the information included in the government-wide financial statements.  For the reasons
described in the preceding paragraph, a separate analysis of the summaries is not presented.

Summary of Net Position

2024 2023 Change

Current and other assets $ 4,663,954 $ 6,921,178 $ (2,257,224)
Capital assets 9,000,156 6,627,741 2,372,415
     Total assets 13,664,110 13,548,919 115,191

Long-term liabilities 8,404,121 8,568,470 (164,349)
Other liabilities 1,007,918 649,720 358,198
     Total liabilities 9,412,039 9,218,190 193,849

Net position:
     Invested in capital assets,
          net of related debt 431,686 (2,095,341) 2,527,027
     Restricted 2,730,867 5,202,204 (2,471,337)
     Unrestricted 1,089,518 1,223,866 (134,348)
          Total net position $ 4,252,071 $ 4,330,729 $ (78,658)

Summary of Changes in Net Position

2024 2023 Change

Revenues:
     Property taxes, including related
          penalty and interest $ 1,455,894 $ 1,062,349 $ 393,545
     Charges for services 997,139 1,143,161 (146,022)
     Other revenues 287,558 344,554 (56,996)
          Total revenues 2,740,591 2,550,064 190,527

Expenses:
     Service operations 2,479,762 2,387,365 92,397
     Debt service 339,487 407,300 (67,813)
          Total expenses 2,819,249 2,794,665 24,584

Change in net position (78,658) (244,601) 165,943

Net position, beginning of year 4,330,729 4,575,330 (244,601)

Net position, end of year $ 4,252,071 $ 4,330,729 $ (78,658)

Financial Analysis of the District’s Funds

The District’s combined fund balances as of the end of the fiscal year ended September 30, 2024, were
$3,793,853, a decrease of $2,628,078 from the prior year.  

The General Fund balance decreased by $147,450, in accordance with the District’s financial plan.

The Special Revenue Fund balance did not change.

The Debt Service Fund balance increased by $88,134, in accordance with the District’s financial plan. 



DRAFT

7

The Capital Projects Fund balance decreased by $2,568,762, as authorized expenditures exceeded interest
earnings on deposits and investments.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The Board of Directors did not amend the budget during the fiscal year.  The District’s budget is primarily a
planning tool.  Accordingly, actual results varied from the budgeted amounts.  A comparison of actual to
budgeted amounts is presented on Page 21 of this report.   The budgetary fund balance as of September 30,
2024, was expected to be $1,183,831 and the actual end of year fund balance was $1,036,381.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital Assets

Capital assets held by the District at the end of the current and previous fiscal years are summarized as
follows:

Capital Assets (Net of Accumulated Depreciation)

2024 2023 Change

Land $ 1,444,898 $ 1,444,898 $ 0
Construction in progress 991,065 527,103 463,962
Buildings and improvements 38,563 47,047 (8,484)
Machinery and equipment 3,239 3,455 (216)
Infrastructure 6,522,391 4,605,238 1,917,153
      Totals $ 9,000,156 $ 6,627,741 $ 2,372,415

Changes to capital assets during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2024, are summarized as follows:

Additions:
     Water system improvements $ 340,562
     Sewer system improvements 541,881
     Drainage system improvements 1,816,888
          Total additions to capital assets 2,699,331

Decreases:
     Depreciation (326,916)

          Net change to capital assets $ 2,372,415

Debt 

Changes in the bonded debt position of the District during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2024, are
summarized as follows:

Bonded debt payable, beginning of year $ 8,560,000
Bonds paid (145,000)
Bonded debt payable, end of year $ 8,415,000

At September 30, 2024, the District had $8,050,000 of bonds authorized but unissued for the purposes of
acquiring, constructing and improving the water, sanitary sewer and drainage system within the District and
$325,943 of bonds authorized but unissued for parks and recreational facilities.



DRAFT

8

The District’s Series 2022 utility bonds and Series 2022 park bonds are insured by Build America Mutual
Assurance Company.  The insured rating of the Series 2022 utility bonds and Series 2022 park bonds is AA
by Standard & Poor’s.  There were no changes in the bond ratings during the fiscal year ended September
30, 2024.

RELEVANT FACTORS AND WATER SUPPLY ISSUES

Property Tax Base

The District’s tax base increased approximately $17,430,000 for the 2023 tax year (approximately 9%), due
to the increase in the average assessed valuations on existing properties.

Relationship to the City of Conroe

Under existing Texas law, since the District lies totally within the extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City of
Conroe (“City”), the District must conform to a City ordinance consenting to the creation of the District.  In
addition, the District may be annexed by the City.  If the District is annexed, the City will assume the District’s
assets and obligations (including the bonded indebtedness) and dissolve the District within ninety (90) days. 

Utilizing a provision of Texas law, the City and the District entered into a Strategic Partnership Agreement
(“SPA”) effective as of November 14, 2014.  The SPA continues through December 31, 2034 and provides
guarantees against municipal annexation for the portions of the District located to the East of Interstate 45
in exchange for the District’s exclusion of certain commercial and undeveloped non-residential territory located
to the West of Interstate 45 in order to facilitate the annexation of such territory by the City.  

Water Supply Issues

The District is within the boundaries of the Lone Star Groundwater Conservation District ("LSGCD").  The
LSGCD was created by the Legislature of the State of Texas in Acts 2001, 77  Legislature, Regular Session. th

The LSGCD is a political subdivision of the State of Texas, governed by an elected seven member board of
directors.   The purpose of the LSGCD is to provide for the conservation, preservation, protection, recharging,
and prevention of waste of groundwater, and of groundwater reservoirs or their subdivisions, and the control
of subsidence caused by the withdrawal of water from those groundwater reservoirs or their subdivisions,
consistent with the objectives of Section 59, Article XVI, Texas Constitution.  Rule 8.1 of the rules of the
LSGCD authorizes the board of directors of the LSGCD to establish by resolution a regulatory water use fee
to accomplish the purposes of the LSGCD.  In accordance with this rule, as of September 30, 2024, the
LSGCD had established a regulatory water use fee of $0.085 per 1,000 gallons of water pumped from each
regulated well.



DRAFT

9

RIVER PLANTATION MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION AND GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET

SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 

Special Statement
Revenue Debt Capital Adjustments of Net

 General Fund Service Projects Total (Note 3) Position

ASSETS

Cash, including interest-bearing accounts, Note 7 $ 479,826 $ 22,741 $ 71,737 $ 72,015 $ 646,319 $ $ 646,319
Temporary investments, at cost, Note 7 653,824 391,968 2,583,600 3,629,392 3,629,392
Receivables:
     Property taxes 53,137 26,633 79,770 79,770
     Service accounts 87,340 87,340 87,340
     Due from East Plantation Utility District, Note 9 88,783 132,350 221,133 221,133
Maintenance taxes collected not yet      
     transferred from other fund 27,666 27,666 (27,666) 0
Due from other fund 101,977 40,156 5,371 147,504 (147,504) 0
Operating reserve at joint facilities, Note 9 25,000 25,000 (25,000) 0
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, Note 4:
     Capital assets not being depreciated 0 2,435,963 2,435,963
     Depreciable capital assets 0 6,564,193 6,564,193

Total assets $ 1,428,770 $ 151,680 $ 490,338 $ 2,793,336 $ 4,864,124 8,799,986 13,664,110

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable $ 215,502 $ 47,217 $ $ 4,696 $ 267,415 267,415
Construction contracts payable 429,537 429,537 429,537
Accrued interest payable 0 28,238 28,238
Customer and builder deposits 118,379 118,379 118,379
Maintenance taxes collected not yet      
     transferred to other fund 27,666 27,666 (27,666) 0
Due to other fund 5,371 79,463 62,670 147,504 (147,504) 0
Long-term liabilities, Note 5:
     Due within one year 0 164,349 164,349
     Due in more than one year 0 8,404,121 8,404,121

         Total liabilities 339,252 126,680 27,666 496,903 990,501 8,421,538 9,412,039

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Property tax revenues 53,137 0 26,633 0 79,770 (79,770) 0

FUND BALANCES / NET POSITION

Fund balances:
     Reserved for:
          Operating reserve at joint facilities, Note 9 25,000 25,000 (25,000) 0
     Committed to construction contracts in progress 1,535,741 1,535,741 (1,535,741) 0
     Assigned to:
          Debt service 436,039 436,039 (436,039) 0
          Capital projects 760,692 760,692 (760,692) 0
          Operating reserve at joint facilities, Note 9 25,000 25,000 (25,000) 0
     Unassigned 1,011,381 1,011,381 (1,011,381) 0

          Total fund balances 1,036,381 25,000 436,039 2,296,433 3,793,853 (3,793,853) 0

Total liabilities, deferred inflows, and fund balances $ 1,428,770 $ 151,680 $ 490,338 $ 2,793,336 $ 4,864,124

Net position:
     Invested in capital assets, net of related debt        431,686 431,686
     Restricted for debt service 434,434 434,434
     Restricted for capital projects 2,296,433 2,296,433
     Unrestricted 1,089,518 1,089,518

Total net position $ 4,252,071 $ 4,252,071

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



DRAFT

10

RIVER PLANTATION MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
                        

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

                
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

Special Debt Capital Statement
General Revenue Service Projects Adjustments of

Fund Fund Fund Fund Total (Note 3) Activities

REVENUES

     Property taxes $ 868,379 $ $ 542,135 $ $ 1,410,514 $ 21,598 $ 1,432,112
     Water service 340,646 340,646 340,646
     Sewer service 418,057 418,057 418,057
     Surface water fees, Note 10 7,753 7,753 7,753
     From participants in joint facilities 615,827 615,827 (453,738) 162,089
     Penalty and interest 54,069 23,782 77,851 77,851
     Interest on deposits and investments 55,451 66 25,896 206,145 287,558 287,558
     Other revenues 14,525 14,525 14,525

     Total revenues 1,758,880 615,893 591,813 206,145 3,172,731 (432,140) 2,740,591

EXPENDITURES / EXPENSES

     Service operations:
          Purchased services, Note 9 257,659 257,659 (257,659) 0
          Professional fees 364,600 52,175 8,313 425,088 425,088
          Contracted services 245,608 38,151 472 284,231 284,231
          Utilities 52,059 48,868 100,927 100,927
          Surface water fees, Note 10 19,199 19,199 19,199
          Repairs and maintenance 798,876 225,048 103,679 1,127,603 1,127,603
          Other operating expenditures 21,730 55,437 77,167 77,167
          Administrative expenditures 118,496 135 118,631 118,631
          Depreciation 0 326,916 326,916
     Capital outlay / non-capital outlay 196,079 2,699,331 2,895,410 (2,895,410) 0
     Debt service:
          Principal retirement 145,000 145,000 (145,000) 0
          Interest and fees 349,894 349,894 (10,407) 339,487

     Total expenditures / expenses 1,878,227 615,893 503,679 2,803,010 5,800,809 (2,981,560) 2,819,249

     Excess (deficiency) of 
           revenues over expenditures (119,347) 0 88,134 (2,596,865) (2,628,078) 2,549,420 (78,658)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

     Increase (decrease) in operating reserve (28,103) 0 0 28,103 0 0 0

  Total other financing sources (uses) (28,103) 0 0 28,103 0 0 0

  Net change in fund balances / net position (147,450) 0 88,134 (2,568,762) (2,628,078) 2,549,420 (78,658)

Beginning of year 1,183,831 25,000 347,905 4,865,195 6,421,931 (2,091,202) 4,330,729

End of year $ 1,036,381 $ 25,000 $ 436,039 $ 2,296,433 $ 3,793,853 $ 458,218 $ 4,252,071

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



DRAFT

11

RIVER PLANTATION MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

NOTE 1:  REPORTING ENTITY    

River Plantation Municipal Utility District (the "District") was created by the Texas Legislature in 1963 as a
fresh water supply district and converted to a municipal utility district in 1978.  The District operates in
accordance with Texas Water Code Chapters 49 and 54.  The first bonds were sold on April 15, 1966.  The
District is a political subdivision of the State of Texas, governed by an elected five member Board of Directors. 
The District is subject to the continuing supervision of the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality.

The District is empowered, among other things, to purchase, construct, operate and maintain all works,
improvements, facilities and plants necessary for the supply of water; the collection, transportation and
treatment of wastewater; and the control and diversion of storm water.  The District may provide garbage
disposal and collection services.  In addition, the District is empowered, if approved by the electorate, the
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality and other governmental entities having jurisdiction,  to establish,
operate and maintain a fire department, either independently or jointly with certain other districts.

Under existing Texas law, since the District lies totally within the extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City of
Conroe (“City”), the District must conform to a City ordinance consenting to the creation of the District.  In
addition, the District may be annexed by the City without the District’s consent.  If the District is annexed, the
City will assume the District’s assets and obligations (including the bonded indebtedness) and dissolve the
District within ninety (90) days.  

Utilizing a provision of Texas law, the City and the District entered into a Strategic Partnership Agreement
(“SPA”) effective as of November 14, 2014.  The SPA continues through December 31, 2034 and provides
guarantees against municipal annexation for the portions of the District located to the East of Interstate 45
in exchange for the District’s exclusion of certain commercial and undeveloped non-residential territory located
to the West of Interstate 45 in order to facilitate the annexation of such territory by the City.  

In evaluating how to define the District for financial reporting purposes, the Board of Directors of the District
has considered all potential component units.  The decision to include a  potential component unit in the
reporting entity was made by applying the criteria established by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board.  The basic, but not the only, criterion for including a potential component unit within the reporting entity
is the governing body's ability to exercise oversight responsibility.  The most significant manifestation of this
ability is financial interdependency.  Other manifestations of the ability to exercise oversight responsibility
include, but are not limited to, the selection of governing authority, the designation of management, the ability
to significantly influence operations and accountability for fiscal matters.  The other criterion used to evaluate
potential component units for inclusion or exclusion from the reporting entity is the existence of special
financing relationships, regardless of whether the District is able to exercise oversight responsibilities.  Based
upon the application of these criteria, there were no other entities which were included as a component unit
in the District's financial statements.

The District is the manager of the joint facilities with East Plantation Utility District.  Oversight of the joint
facilities is exercised by the Board of Directors of the District and financial activity of the Plant has been
included as a component unit in the financial statements of the District.  The Plant's General Fund has been
reported as the Special Revenue Fund of the District.  Transactions of the joint facilites are described in Note
9.



DRAFT

12

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

NOTE 2:  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The District’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
(“GAAP”).  The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (the “GASB”) is responsible for establishing GAAP
for state and local governments through its pronouncements (Statements and Interpretations).  Governments
are also required to follow the pronouncements of the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued through
November 30, 1989 (when applicable), that do not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements.  The
more significant accounting policies established in GAAP and used by the District are discussed below.  

Basic Financial Statements

The District’s basic financial statements include both government-wide (reporting the District as a whole) and
governmental fund financial statements (reporting the District’s funds).  Because the District is a single-
program government as defined by the GASB, the District has combined the government-wide statements
and the fund financial statements using a columnar format that reconciles individual line items of fund financial
data to government-wide data in a separate column on the face of the financial statements.  An additional 
reconciliation between the fund and the government-wide financial data is presented in Note 3.

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of activities)
report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the District.  The effect of interfund activity has been
removed from these statements.  The District’s net position is reported in three parts – invested in capital
assets, net of related debt; restricted net position; and unrestricted net position.  The government-wide
statement of activities reports the components of the changes in net position during the reporting period. 

The financial transactions of the District are reported in individual funds in the fund financial statements.  Each
fund is accounted for in a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprises its assets, liabilities, fund
balances, revenues and expenditures and changes in fund balances.  The District’s fund balances are
reported as nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned or unassigned.  Nonspendable fund balances are
either not in spendable form or are contractually required to remain intact.  Restricted fund balances include
amounts that can only be used for the specific purposes stipulated by constitutional provisions, external
resource providers or enabling legislation.  Committed fund balances include amounts that can only be used
for the specific purposes determined by formal action of the District’s Board of Directors.  Assigned fund
balances are intended for a specific purpose but do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or
committed.  Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the District’s General Fund and includes
all spendable amounts not contained in the other classifications.  The transactions of the District are
accounted for in the following funds:

General Fund -- To account for all revenues and expenditures not required to be accounted for in other
funds.

Special Revenue Fund  -- To account for all revenues and expenditures of the general operations of the
joint wastewater and drainage facilities with East Plantation Utility District. 

Debt Service Fund -- To account for the accumulation of financial resources for, and the payment of, bond
principal and interest, paid principally from property taxes levied by the District.

Capital Projects Fund -- To account for financial resources designated to construct or acquire capital
assets.  Such resources are derived principally from proceeds of the sale of bonds.



DRAFT

13

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Basis of Accounting

The government-wide statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting which recognizes all long-term assets and receivables as well as long-term debt
and obligations.  Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred,
regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  Ad valorem property taxes are recognized as revenues in the
fiscal year for which they have been levied and related penalties and interest are recognized in the fiscal year
in which they are imposed. An allowance for uncollectibles is estimated for delinquent property taxes and
reported separately in the financial statements.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both
measurable and available.  Revenues are considered to be available if they are collectible within the current
period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period.  Expenditures generally are recorded
when a liability is incurred except for principal and interest on bonds payable which are recorded only when
payment is due.  

Interfund Activity

Activity between funds that is representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the
fiscal year is reported as interfund receivables or payables, as appropriate, as are all other outstanding
balances between funds.  Operating transfers between funds represent legally authorized transfers from the
fund receiving resources to the fund through which the resources are to be expended. 

Receivables

Service accounts receivable as reported are considered collectible.  The District uses the direct write off
method for uncollectible service accounts.   Unbilled water and sewer revenues are not material and are not
recorded at year end.  The District considers service accounts revenues to be available if they are to be
collected within 60 days after the end of the fiscal year.

In the fund financial statements, ad valorem taxes and penalties and interest are reported as revenues in the
fiscal year in which they become available to finance expenditures of the fiscal year for which they have been
levied.  Property taxes which have been levied and are not yet collected (or have been collected in advance
of the fiscal year for which they have been levied) are recorded as deferred inflow of resources.  Property
taxes collected after the end of the fiscal year are not included in revenues. 

Inventory                                                   

Inventory is valued at cost.  Inventory consists of expendable supplies held for consumption.  The cost is
recorded as an expenditure at the time individual inventory items are purchased and significant inventories
on hand at the balance sheet date are reported as an asset in the balance sheet.  Reported inventory is
equally offset by a fund balance reserve which indicates that it does not constitute "available spendable
resources." 

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and immovable public domain or "infrastructure"
assets are reported in the government-wide financial statements.  Capital assets are defined by the District
as assets with an initial individual cost of more than $1,000 (including installation costs, if any, and associated
professional fees) and an estimated useful life in excess of two years.  Such assets are recorded at historical
cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed by the District.  Donated capital assets are
recorded at historical cost.  Additions, improvements and other capital outlays that significantly extend the
useful life of an asset or increase the value of an asset are capitalized.  Costs incurred for repairs and
maintenance are expensed as incurred. 



DRAFT

14

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Depreciation on capital assets is  computed using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful
lives:

Plant and equipment 10-45 years
Underground lines 45 years

Long-term Liabilities

Long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported in the government-wide financial statements. 
Bond premiums and discounts, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds.  Bonds payable are
reported net of the applicable premium or discount.  If bonds are refunded and the  carrying amount of the
new debt is different than the net carrying amount of the old debt, the difference is netted against the new debt
and amortized using the effective interest method over the shorter of the remaining life of the refunded debt
or the life of the new debt issued. 

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as
bond issuance costs, during the current period.  The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing
sources.  Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on
debt issuances are reported as other financing uses.  Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual
debt proceeds received, are reported as expenditures of the fund from which they are paid.

NOTE 3:  RECONCILIATION OF FUND TO GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Reconciliation of year end fund balances to net position:

Total fund balances, end of year $ 3,793,853

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore, 
are not reported in the funds:
 Total capital assets, net 9,000,156

Some long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the
current period and therefore are not reported in the funds:
 Bonds payable $ (8,415,000)

Issuance premiums (to be amortized as interest expense) (153,470)  (8,568,470)

The assets in the special revenue fund are owned by the District and other participants in
the joint venture:

The District's equity (25,000)

Some receivables that do not provide current financial resources are not reported as
receivables in the funds:

Uncollected property taxes 79,770

Some liabilities that do not require the use of current financial resources are not reported
as liabilities in the funds:

Accrued interest (28,238)

Net position, end of year $ 4,252,071



DRAFT

15

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Reconciliation of net change in fund balances to change in net position:

Total net change in fund balances $ (2,628,078)

The funds report capital outlays as expenditures.  However, in the statement of activities
the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as
depreciation expense: 

Capital outlay $ 2,699,331
Depreciation (326,916) 2,372,415

The issuance of long-term debt (bonds payable) provides current financial resources to
the funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current
financial resources of the funds.  Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net
position.  The effect of these differences in the treatment of long-term debt:

Principal reduction 145,000

The funds report the effect of bond issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar
items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the
statement of activities.  The net effect of these differences in the treatment of these items: 
    Issuance premiums 9,612

Some revenues reported in the statement of activities do not provide current financial
resources and therefore are not reported as revenues in the funds:

Uncollected property taxes 21,598

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current
financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in the funds:    

Accrued interest 795

Change in net position $ (78,658)



DRAFT

16

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

NOTE 4:  CAPITAL ASSETS                     

Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2024, was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance

Capital assets not being depreciated:
     Land $ 1,444,898 $ $ $ 1,444,898
     Construction in progress 527,103 2,699,331 2,235,369 991,065

     Total capital assets not being depreciated 1,972,001 2,699,331 2,235,369 2,435,963

Depreciable capital assets:
     Buildings and improvements 238,122 238,122
     Machinery and equipment 170,326 170,326
     Infrastructures 13,731,042 2,235,369 15,966,411

     Total depreciable capital assets 14,139,490 2,235,369 0 16,374,859

Less accumulated depreciation for:
     Buildings and improvements (191,075) (8,484) (199,559)
     Machinery and equipment (166,871) (216) (167,087)
     Infrastructures (9,125,804) (318,216) (9,444,020)

     Total accumulated depreciation (9,483,750) (326,916) 0 (9,810,666)

     Total depreciable capital assets, net 4,655,740 1,908,453 0 6,564,193

Total capital assets, net $ 6,627,741 $ 4,607,784 $ 2,235,369 $ 9,000,156

Changes to capital assets:
     Capital outlay $ 2,699,331 $
     Assets transferred to depreciable assets 2,235,269 2,235,269
     Depreciation expense for the fiscal year (326,916)

     Net increases / decreases to capital assets $ 4,607,684 $ 2,235,269

 NOTE 5:  LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Long-term liability activity for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2024, was as follows:

Beginning Ending Due within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year

Bonds payable $ 8,560,000 $ $ 145,000 $ 8,415,000 $ 155,000
Deferred amounts:
     For issuance (discounts) premiums 163,082 9,612 153,470 9,349

          Total bonds payable 8,723,082 0 154,612 8,568,470 164,349

Total long-term liabilities $ 8,723,082 $ 0 $ 154,612 $ 8,568,470 $ 164,349



DRAFT

17

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

As of September 30, 2024, the debt service requirements on the bonds payable were as follows:

Fiscal
Year Principal Interest Total

2025 $ 155,000 $ 338,856 $ 493,856
2026 160,000 328,593 488,593
2027 170,000 317,969 487,969
2028 175,000 306,619 481,619
2029 185,000 295,070 480,070

2030 - 2034 1,060,000 1,342,034 2,402,034
2035 - 2039 1,325,000 1,132,706 2,457,706
2040 - 2044 1,650,000 861,280 2,511,280
2045 - 2049 2,060,000 522,806 2,582,806
2050 - 2052 1,475,000 116,312 1,591,312

$ 8,415,000 $ 5,562,245 $ 13,977,245

Bonds voted for financing facilities $ 21,470,000
Bonds for financing facilities approved for sale and sold 13,420,000
Bonds voted for financing facilities and not issued 8,050,000

Bonds voted for financing parks and recreational facilities $ 2,000,943
Bonds voted for financing parks and recreational facilities and issued 1,675,000
Bonds voted for financing parks and recreational facilities and not issued 325,943

The bonds are payable from the proceeds of an ad valorem tax levied upon all property subject to taxation
within the District, without limitation as to rate or amount.

The bond issues payable at September 30, 2024, were as follows:
                                                                      

Series 2022 Series 2022 Park
Amounts outstanding,

September 30, 2024 $6,810,000 $1,605,000

Interest rates 3.25% to 7.25% 2.75% to 4.00%
                                                                      

Maturity dates, serially
beginning/ending September 1, 2025/2052 September 1, 2025/2051

                                                                      
Interest payment dates March 1/September 1 March 1/September 1

                                                                      
Callable dates September 1, 2028* September 1, 2028*

*Or any date thereafter at par plus accrued interest to the date of redemption, in whole or in part at the
option of the District. 

Developer Construction Commitments and Liabilities

At September 30, 2024, there were no developer construction commitments or liabilities.



DRAFT

18

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

NOTE 6:  PROPERTY TAXES
                    

The Montgomery Central Appraisal District has the responsibility for appraising property for all taxing units
within the county as of January 1 of each year, subject to review and change by the county Appraisal Review
Board.  The appraisal roll, as approved by the Appraisal Review Board, must be used by the District in
establishing its tax roll and tax rate.  The District's taxes are usually levied in the fall, are due when billed and
become delinquent after September 30 of the following year or 30 days after the date billed, whichever is later. 
On January 1 of each year, a statutory tax lien attaches to property to secure the payment of all taxes,
penalties and interest ultimately imposed for the year on the property.    

At an election held on November 6, 2007, the voters within the District authorized a maintenance tax without
limit as to rate or amount on all property subject to taxation within the District.  This maintenance tax is being
used by the General Fund to pay expenditures of operating the District.

On September 7, 2023, the District levied the following ad valorem taxes for the 2023 tax year on the adjusted
taxable valuation of $220,712,153:

     Rate Amount

Debt service $ 0.2500 $ 551,852
Maintenance 0.4000 882,963

$ 0.6500 $ 1,434,815

A reconciliation of the tax levy to property tax revenues on the Statement of Activities is as follows:

2023 tax year total property tax levy $ 1,434,815
Appraisal district adjustments to prior year taxes (2,703)

Statement of Activities property tax revenues $ 1,432,112

NOTE 7:  DEPOSITS

The District complied with the requirements of the Public Funds Investment Act during the current fiscal year
including the preparation of quarterly investment reports required by the Act.

State statutes authorize the District to invest and reinvest in direct or indirect obligations of the United States,
the State of Texas, any county, city, school district, or other political subdivision of the state, or in local
government investment pools authorized under the Public Funds Investment Act.  Funds of the District may
be placed in certificates of deposit of state or national banks or savings and loan associations within the state
provided that they are secured in the manner provided for the security of the funds under the laws of the State
of Texas.  In accordance with the District's investment policies, during the current year the District's funds
were invested in interest bearing accounts at authorized financial institutions and an authorized private sector
investment pool.  The private sector investment pool is rated AAAm by Standard & Poor’s.    

In accordance with state statutes and the District's investment policies, the District requires that insurance or
security be provided by depositories for all funds held by them.  At the balance sheet date, the District’s
deposits were covered by federal insurance.

At the balance sheet date the carrying value and market value of the investments in the authorized private
sector investment pool was $3,629,392.



DRAFT

19

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Deposits and temporary investments restricted by state statutes and the Bond Orders:

Debt Service Fund

For payment of debt principal and interest,
paying agent fees and costs of assessing and
collecting taxes:

     Cash $ 71,737
     Temporary investments 391,968

$ 463,705

Capital Projects Fund

For construction of capital assets:

     Cash $ 72,015
     Temporary investments 2,583,600

$ 2,655,615

NOTE 8:  RISK MANAGEMENT 

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to:  torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets;
errors and omissions; personal injuries and natural disasters.  Significant losses are covered by insurance
as described below.  There were no significant reductions in insurance coverage from the prior fiscal year. 
There have been no settlements which have exceeded the insurance coverage for each of the past three
fiscal years.   

At September 30, 2024, the District had physical damage coverage of $14,728,000, mobile equipment
coverage of $6,655, boiler and machinery coverage of $100,000, general liability coverage with a per
occurrence limit of $5,000,000 and $10,000,000 general aggregate and employee’s crime coverage of
$50,000.

NOTE 9:  CONTRACT WITH EAST PLANTATION UTILITY DISTRICT

On March 28, 2019, the District entered into a ten year agreement with the East Plantation Utility District
("EPUD") upon the expiration of the original 1979 agreement.  Under the terms of the agreement, the District
owns 59% of the District’s sewage treatment facilities and EPUD owns 41%.  In addition the districts each own
half of the joint sewage trunkline improvements serving EPUD.  Costs of operating the sewage treatment
facilities are divided based upon the number of connections served by each district and are billed to EPUD
monthly.  Capital improvements are billed based upon capacity owned by each district.  The agreement also
provides that each district will provide water to the other district in event of emergency at cost.

Each participant is responsible only for its share of the operating costs of the Plant.  Participants are billed a
monthly amount which is based upon actual costs incurred during the prior month as allocated based upon
capacity owned and the number of equivalent connections within each participating district.  The District has
contributed $25,000 for the operating reserve.  The District's share of operating costs was $257,659 and
capital improvement costs were $256,011 for the year ended September 30, 2024.  



DRAFT

20

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

NOTE 10: GROUNDWATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT

The District is within the boundaries of the Lone Star Groundwater Conservation District ("LSGCD").  The
LSGCD was created by the Legislature of the State of Texas in Acts 2001, 77  Legislature, Regular Session. th

The LSGCD is a political subdivision of the State of Texas, governed by an elected seven member board of
directors.   The purpose of the LSGCD is to provide for the conservation, preservation, protection, recharging,
and prevention of waste of groundwater, and of groundwater reservoirs or their subdivisions, and the control
of subsidence caused by the withdrawal of water from those groundwater reservoirs or their subdivisions,
consistent with the objectives of Section 59, Article XVI, Texas Constitution.  Rule 8.1 of the rules of the
LSGCD authorizes the board of directors of the LSGCD to establish by resolution a regulatory water use fee
to accomplish the purposes of the LSGCD.  In accordance with this rule, as of September 30, 2024, the
LSGCD had established a regulatory water use fee of $0.085 per 1,000 gallons of water pumped from each
regulated well.  The District's well regulatory water use fees payable to the LSGCD for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2024, were $19,199.  The District billed its customers $7,753 during the fiscal year to pay for
the fees charged by the LSGCD.



DRAFT

21

RIVER PLANTATION MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE, BUDGET AND ACTUAL, GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget

Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

REVENUES

     Property taxes $ 855,828 $ 855,828 $ 868,379 $ 12,551

     Water service 484,689 484,689 340,646 (144,043)
     Sewer service 425,000 425,000 418,057 (6,943)
     Surface water fees 13,000 13,000 7,753 (5,247)
     Penalty and interest 26,000 26,000 54,069 28,069
     Interest on deposits 20,850 20,850 55,451 34,601
     Other revenues 7,000 7,000 14,525 7,525

     TOTAL REVENUES 1,832,367 1,832,367 1,758,880 (73,487)

EXPENDITURES

     Service operations:
          Purchased services 186,622 186,622 257,659 71,037
          Professional fees 285,000 285,000 364,600 79,600
          Contracted services 114,800 114,800 245,608 130,808
          Utilities 71,000 71,000 52,059 (18,941)
          Surface water fees 20,500 20,500 19,199 (1,301)
          Repairs, maintenance and other
               operating expenditures 1,076,490 1,076,490 820,606 (255,884)
          Administrative expenditures 77,955 77,955 118,496 40,541
     Capital outlay 0 0 0 0

     TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,832,367 1,832,367 1,878,227 45,860

EXCESS REVENUES (EXPENDITURES) 0 0 (119,347) (119,347)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

     Increase (decrease) in operating reserve 0 0 (28,103) (28,103)

     TOTAL OTHER FINANCIAL SOURCES (USES) 0 0 (28,103) (28,103)

EXCESS SOURCES (USES) 0 0 (147,450) (147,450)

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,183,831 1,183,831 1,183,831 0

FUND BALANCE,  END OF YEAR $ 1,183,831 $ 1,183,831 $ 1,036,381 $ (147,450)

The District's Board of Directors adopts an annual nonappropriated budget.  This budget may be amended throughout the fiscal year and
is prepared on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles.

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.



DRAFT

22

RIVER PLANTATION MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE, BUDGET AND ACTUAL, SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget

Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

REVENUES

     From participants in plant:
          River Plantation Municipal Utility District $ 186,622 $ 186,622 $ 369,929 $ 183,307
          East Plantation Utility District 127,748 127,748 245,898 118,150
     Interest on deposits 100 100 66 (34)

     TOTAL REVENUES 314,470 314,470 615,893 301,423

EXPENDITURES

     Service operations:
          Professional fees 55,000 55,000 52,175 (2,825)
          Contracted services 41,000 41,000 38,151 (2,849)
          Utilities 45,350 45,350 48,868 3,518
          Repairs and maintenance 79,516 79,516 225,048 145,532
          Other operating expenditures 54,520 54,520 55,437 917
          Administrative expenditures 39,084 39,084 135 (38,949)

     Capital outlay 0 0 196,079 196,079

     TOTAL EXPENDITURES 314,470 314,470 615,893 301,423

EXCESS REVENUES (EXPENDITURES) 0 0 0 0

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 25,000 25,000 25,000 0

FUND BALANCE,  END OF YEAR $ 25,000 $ 25,000 $ 25,000 $ 0

The District's Board of Directors adopts an annual nonappropriated budget.  This budget may be amended throughout the fiscal year and
is prepared on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 



DRAFT

23

RIVER PLANTATION MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF TEXAS SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
REQUIRED BY THE TEXAS COMMISSION ON ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

(Schedules included are checked or explanatory notes provided for omitted schedules.)

[X] TSI-1. Services and Rates  

[X] TSI-2. General Fund Expenditures  

[X] TSI-3. Temporary Investments

[X] TSI-4. Taxes Levied and Receivable  

[X] TSI-5. Long-Term Debt Service Requirements by Years
                                                         

[X] TSI-6. Changes in Long-Term Bonded Debt
                              

[X] TSI-7. Comparative Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - 
General Fund and Debt Service Fund - Five Year

[X] TSI-8. Board Members, Key Personnel and Consultants  



DRAFT

24

RIVER PLANTATION MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF SERVICES AND RATES

SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

1. Services Provided by the District during the Fiscal Year:

 X  Retail Water             Wholesale Water  X  Drainage
 X  Retail Wastewater      Wholesale Wastewater      Irrigation
     Parks/Recreation         Fire Protection      Security
     Solid Waste/Garbage             Flood Control      Roads
 X  Participates in joint venture, regional system and/or wastewater service
     (other than emergency interconnect)
     Other                                                                   

     
2. Retail Service Providers
                                                    

a.  Retail Rates for a 5/8" meter (or equivalent):

Minimum 
Charge

Minimum
Usage

Flat
Rate
Y/N

Rate per 1000
Gallons Over

Minimum Usage Levels

WATER: $12.75 under 3,000 N $2.85 3,001 to 10,000
3.15 10,001 to 20,000
3.55 20,001 to 30,000
4.00 30,001 to 40,000
4.75 40,001 to 50,000
6.00 Over 50,000

WASTEWATER: $31.00 under 3,000 Y $0.00
39.00 over 3,000 Y 0.00

SURCHARGE: 0.50 % of monthly billing -- TCEQ assessment fees.
$0.085 per 1,000 gallons of water used.  – LSGCD surface water fees.

District employs winter averaging for wastewater usage:  Yes       No   X 

Total charges per 10,000 gallons usage: Water: $32.70 Wastewater: $39.00 Surcharge: $1.21

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.



DRAFT

25

RIVER PLANTATION MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF SERVICES AND RATES (Continued)

SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

b.  Water and Wastewater Retail Connections (unaudited):

Meter Size
Total

Connections
Active

Connections
ESFC*
Factor

Active
ESFCs

Unmetered 0 0 1.0 0

< or = 3/4" 932 898 1.0 898

1" 19 19  2.5 48

1-1/2" 1 1 5.0 5

2" 12 12 8.0 96

3" 0 0 15.0 0

4" 0 0 25.0 0

6" 0 0 50.0 0

8" 0 0 80.0 0

10" 0 0 115.0 0

Total Water 964 930 1,047

Total Wastewater** 942 915 1.0 915

*Single family equivalents
**Does not include the approximately 550 sewer connections in East Plantation Utility District.

3. Total Water Consumption during the Fiscal Year (rounded to thousands):

Gallons pumped into system (unaudited):   100,078
Gallons billed to customers (unaudited): 93,923

Water Accountability Ratio
(Gallons billed/ gallons pumped): 94%

4. Standby Fees (authorized only under TWC Section 49.231):

Does the District have Debt Service standby fees?  Yes      No  X   

If yes, date of the most recent Commission Order:   __________________

Does the District have Operation and Maintenance standby fees?  Yes      No  X   

If yes, date of the most recent Commission Order:   __________________
             

   

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.



DRAFT

26

RIVER PLANTATION MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
                                                                                           

EXPENDITURES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

Special Debt Capital Totals
General Revenue Service Projects (Memorandum

Fund Fund Fund Fund Only)
CURRENT

     Purchased services:
          Wastewater $ 231,095 $ $ $ $ 231,095
          Drainage 26,564 26,564

257,659 0 0 0 257,659

     Professional fees:
           Auditing 12,300 12,300
           Legal 255,136 8,313 263,449
           Engineering 97,164 52,175 149,339

364,600 52,175 8,313 0 425,088

     Contracted services:
           Operation and billing 161,104 21,558 182,662
           Bookkeeping 71,969 16,593 88,562
           Tax assessor-collector 472 472
           Central appraisal district 12,535 12,535

245,608 38,151 472 0 284,231

     Utilities 52,059 48,868 0 0 100,927

     Surface water fees 19,199 0 0 0 19,199

     Repairs and maintenance 798,876 225,048 0 103,679 1,127,603

     Other operating expenditures:
          Sludge hauling 28,272 28,272
          Chemicals 5,952 10,099 16,051
          Laboratory costs 11,168 14,778 25,946
          Security 0
          TCEQ assessment 4,610 4,610
          Other 2,288 2,288

21,730 55,437 0 0 77,167

     Administrative expenditures:
          Director's fees 7,600 7,600
          Office supplies and postage 5,167 5,167
          Insurance 34,677 34,677
          Election costs 52,611 52,611
          Permit fees 2,640 2,640
          Other 15,801 135 15,936

118,496 135 0 0 118,631

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.



DRAFT

27

RIVER PLANTATION MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
                                                                                           

EXPENDITURES (Continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

Special Debt Capital Totals
General Revenue Service Projects (Memorandum

Fund Fund Fund Fund Only)

CAPITAL OUTLAY

      Authorized expenditures $ 0 $ 196,079 0 $2,699,331 $2,895,410

DEBT SERVICE

     Principal retirement 0 0 145,000 0 145,000

     Interest and fees:
          Interest 348,394 348,394
          Paying agent fees 1,500 1,500

0 0 349,894 0 349,894

     TOTAL EXPENDITURES $1,878,227 $ 615,893 $ 503,679 $2,803,010 $5,800,809

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.



DRAFT

28

RIVER PLANTATION MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT

ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN DEPOSITS
ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

General
Fund

Special
Revenue

Fund

Debt
Service
Fund

Capital
Projects

Fund

Totals
(Memorandum

Only)
SOURCES OF DEPOSITS AND   
    TEMPORARY INVESTMENTS

Cash receipts from revenues 
     excluding maintenance taxes $ 914,448 $ 582,352 $ 591,813 $ 206,145 $ 2,294,758

Maintenance tax collections 868,379 868,379
Maintenance tax transfers 841,634 841,634
Reimbursement from other fund 123,426 34,112 157,538

TOTAL DEPOSITS AND TEMPORARY 
    INVESTMENTS PROVIDED 1,879,508 582,352 1,460,192 240,257 4,162,309

APPLICATIONS OF DEPOSITS AND
    TEMPORARY INVESTMENTS

Cash disbursements for:
Current expenditures 1,660,502 427,641 8,785 103,679 2,200,607
Capital outlay 118,496 196,079 2,377,342 2,691,917
Debt service 494,894 494,894
Other district 126,032 126,032
Other fund 62,670 5,371 68,041

Reimbursement to other fund 34,112 123,426 157,538
Maintenance tax transfers 841,634 841,634
Decrease in customer and builder deposits 665 665

TOTAL DEPOSITS AND TEMPORARY
    INVESTMENTS APPLIED 1,876,445 623,720 1,345,313 2,735,850 6,581,328

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN DEPOSITS
    AND TEMPORARY INVESTMENTS 3,063 (41,368) 114,879 (2,495,593) (2,419,019)

DEPOSITS AND TEMPORARY INVESTMENTS   
    BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,130,587 64,109 348,826 5,151,208 6,694,730

DEPOSITS AND TEMPORARY INVESTMENTS 
    BALANCES, END OF YEAR $ 1,133,650 $ 22,741 $ 463,705 $ 2,655,615 $ 4,275,711

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.



DRAFT

29

RIVER PLANTATION MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF TEMPORARY INVESTMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

Interest
Rate

Maturity
Date

Year End
Balance

Accrued
Interest

Receivable
GENERAL FUND

Texas CLASS

No. TX-01-0752-0001 Market On demand $ 653,824 $ 0

DEBT SERVICE FUND

Texas CLASS

No. TX-01-0752-0003 Market On demand 5,402 0
No. TX-01-0752-0005 Market On demand 386,566 0

$ 391,968 $ 0

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

Texas CLASS

No. TX-01-0752-0002 Market On demand 0 0
No. TX-01-0752-0004 Market On demand 2,583,600 0

$ 2,583,600 $ 0

Total – All Funds $ 3,629,392 $ 0

See accompanying independent auditor’s report. 



DRAFT

30

RIVER PLANTATION MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT

TAXES LEVIED AND RECEIVABLE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

Debt
Maintenance Service

Taxes Taxes

RECEIVABLE, BEGINNING OF YEAR $ 40,035 $ 18,137

     Additions and corrections to prior year taxes (1,482) (1,221)

          Adjusted receivable, beginning of year 38,553 16,916

2023 ADJUSTED TAX ROLL 882,963 551,852

     Total to be accounted for 921,516 568,768

     Tax collections:  Current tax year (854,171) (533,857)
                                Prior tax years (14,208) (8,278)

     RECEIVABLE, END OF YEAR $ 53,137 $ 26,633

RECEIVABLE, BY TAX YEAR

     2013 and prior $ 376 $ 17
     2014 304 0
     2015 663 0
     2016 1,120 0
     2017 1,416 0
     2018 1,703 0
     2019 2,050 0
     2020 3,061 0
     2021 4,341 0
     2022 9,311 8,621
     2023 28,792 17,995

     RECEIVABLE, END OF YEAR $ 53,137 $ 26,633

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.



DRAFT

31

RIVER PLANTATION MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT

TAXES LEVIED AND RECEIVABLE (Continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

ADJUSTED PROPERTY VALUATIONS
     AS OF JANUARY 1 OF TAX YEAR 2023 2022 2021 2020

     Land $ 27,528,989 $ 42,456,878 $ 24,233,854 $ 24,276,884
     Improvements 235,111,659 205,649,102 163,177,670 153,775,974
     Personal property 5,572,954 4,873,281 4,182,021 4,021,620
     Less exemptions (47,501,449) (49,698,864) (22,877,543) (22,591,942)

          TOTAL PROPERTY VALUATIONS $ 220,712,153 $ 203,280,397 $ 168,716,002 $ 159,482,536

TAX RATES PER $100 VALUATION

     Debt service tax rates $ 0.25000 $ 0.25000 $ 0.00000 $ 0.00000
     Maintenance tax rates* 0.40000 0.27000 0.31602 0.32000

     TOTAL TAX RATES PER
          $100 VALUATION $ 0.65000 $ 0.52000 $ 0.31602 $ 0.32000

TAX ROLLS $ 1,434,815 $ 1,059,835 $ 533,697 $ 515,900

PERCENT OF TAXES COLLECTED
          TO TAXES LEVIED 96.7 % 98.3 % 99.2 % 99.4 %

*Maximum tax rate approved by voters on November 6, 2007:  Unlimited

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.



DRAFT

32

RIVER PLANTATION MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT

LONG-TERM DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS, BY YEARS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

Series 2022

Due During Principal Interest Due
Fiscal Years Due March 1,

Ending September 30 September 1 September 1 Total

2025 $ 125,000 $ 292,075 $ 417,075
2026 130,000 283,012 413,012
2027 140,000 273,588 413,588
2028 140,000 263,438 403,438
2029 150,000 253,288 403,288
2030 160,000 242,412 402,412
2031 165,000 236,012 401,012
2032 170,000 229,412 399,412
2033 175,000 223,888 398,888
2034 185,000 218,200 403,200
2035 190,000 210,800 400,800
2036 205,000 203,200 408,200
2037 210,000 195,000 405,000
2038 220,000 186,600 406,600
2039 230,000 177,800 407,800
2040 240,000 168,600 408,600
2041 250,000 159,000 409,000
2042 265,000 149,000 414,000
2043 275,000 138,400 413,400
2044 285,000 127,400 412,400
2045 295,000 116,000 411,000
2046 315,000 104,200 419,200
2047 325,000 91,600 416,600
2048 340,000 78,600 418,600
2049 355,000 65,000 420,000
2050 370,000 50,800 420,800
2051 385,000 36,000 421,000
2052 515,000 20,600 535,600

TOTALS $ 6,810,000 $ 4,793,925 $ 11,603,925

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.



DRAFT

33

RIVER PLANTATION MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT

LONG-TERM DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS, BY YEARS (Continued)

SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

Series 2022 Park

Due During Principal Interest Due
Fiscal Years Due March 1,

Ending September 30 September 1 September 1 Total

2025 $ 30,000 $ 46,781 $ 76,781
2026 30,000 45,581 75,581
2027 30,000 44,381 74,381
2028 35,000 43,181 78,181
2029 35,000 41,782 76,782
2030 35,000 40,732 75,732
2031 40,000 39,682 79,682
2032 40,000 38,482 78,482
2033 45,000 37,282 82,282
2034 45,000 35,932 80,932
2035 50,000 34,694 84,694
2036 50,000 33,318 83,318
2037 55,000 31,944 86,944
2038 55,000 30,432 85,432
2039 60,000 28,918 88,918
2040 60,000 27,268 87,268
2041 65,000 25,618 90,618
2042 65,000 23,832 88,832
2043 70,000 22,044 92,044
2044 75,000 20,118 95,118
2045 80,000 18,056 98,056
2046 80,000 15,856 95,856
2047 85,000 13,656 98,656
2048 90,000 11,212 101,212
2049 95,000 8,626 103,626
2050 100,000 5,894 105,894
2051 105,000 3,018 108,018

TOTALS $ 1,605,000 $ 768,320 $ 2,373,320

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.



DRAFT

34

RIVER PLANTATION MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT

LONG-TERM DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS, BY YEARS (Continued)

SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

Annual Requirements for All Series

Due During Total Total
Fiscal Years Principal Interest

Ending September 30 Due Due Total

2025 $ 155,000 $ 338,856 $ 493,856
2026 160,000 328,593 488,593
2027 170,000 317,969 487,969
2028 175,000 306,619 481,619
2029 185,000 295,070 480,070
2030 195,000 283,144 478,144
2031 205,000 275,694 480,694
2032 210,000 267,894 477,894
2033 220,000 261,170 481,170
2034 230,000 254,132 484,132
2035 240,000 245,494 485,494
2036 255,000 236,518 491,518
2037 265,000 226,944 491,944
2038 275,000 217,032 492,032
2039 290,000 206,718 496,718
2040 300,000 195,868 495,868
2041 315,000 184,618 499,618
2042 330,000 172,832 502,832
2043 345,000 160,444 505,444
2044 360,000 147,518 507,518
2045 375,000 134,056 509,056
2046 395,000 120,056 515,056
2047 410,000 105,256 515,256
2048 430,000 89,812 519,812
2049 450,000 73,626 523,626
2050 470,000 56,694 526,694
2051 490,000 39,018 529,018
2052 515,000 20,600 535,600

TOTALS $ 8,415,000 $ 5,562,245 $ 13,977,245

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.



DRAFT

35

RIVER PLANTATION MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT

ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN LONG-TERM BONDED DEBT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

(1) (2) Totals

Bond Series: 2022 2022 Park

Interest Rate: 3.25% to
7.25%

2.75% to
4.00%

Dates Interest Payable: March1/
September 1

March1/
September 1

Maturity Dates: September 1,
2025/2052

September 1,
2025/2051

Bonds Outstanding at 
    Beginning of Current Year $ 6,925,000 $ 1,635,000 $ 8,560,000

Less Retirements: (115,000) (30,000) (145,000)

Bonds Outstanding at
    End of Current Year $ 6,810,000 $ 1,605,000 $ 8,415,000

Current Year Interest Paid: $ 300,413 $ 47,981 $ 348,394

Bond Descriptions and Original Amount of Issue

(1) River Plantation Municipal Utility District Unlimited Tax Bonds, Series 2022  ($6,950,000)

(2) River Plantation Municipal Utility District Unlimited Tax Park Bonds, Series 2022 ($1,675,000)

Paying Agent/Registrar

(1) (2)  The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., Dallas, Texas

Bond Authority Tax Bonds Other Bonds Refunding Bonds

Amount Authorized by Voters: $ 21,470,000 $ 2,000,943 $ 0
Amount Issued: 13,420,000 1,675,000
Remaining to be Issued: 8,050,000 325,943

Net Debt Service Fund deposits and investments balances as of September 30, 2024:  $436,039
Average annual debt service payment for remaining term of all debt:        499,187

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.



DRAFTRIVER PLANTATION MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT

COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES,
GENERAL FUND

FOR YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30

AMOUNT PERCENT OF TOTAL REVENUES

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020

REVENUES

Property taxes $ 868,379 $ 545,241 $ 529,376 $ 518,885 $ 484,125 49.4 % 34.9 % 34.7 % 40.3 % 39.2 %

Water and sewer service 758,703 891,797 809,606 610,506 570,137 43.1 57.0 52.9 47.5 46.3

Service to East Plantation Utility District 0 0 85,413 95,559 88,458 0.0 0.0 5.6 7.4 7.2

Surface water fees 7,753 10,097 14,096 15,026 16,468 0.4 0.6 0.9 1.2 1.3

Penalty and interest 54,069 26,839 22,746 25,642 22,020 3.1 1.7 1.5 2.0 1.8

Interest on deposits 55,451 49,266 8,774 501 33,970 3.2 3.1 0.6 0.0 2.8

Other revenues 14,525 42,482 58,601 20,228 17,607 0.8 2.7 3.8 1.6 1.4

TOTAL REVENUES 1,758,880 1,565,722 1,528,612 1,286,347 1,232,785 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0

EXPENDITURES

Current:

Personnel salaries and benefits 0 0 202,424 298,775 306,981 0.0 0.0 13.2 23.2 24.9

Purchased services 257,659 235,930 0 0 0 14.6 15.1 0.0 0.0 0.0

Professional fees 364,600 349,956 277,416 332,041 269,325 20.7 22.4 18.1 25.8 21.8

Contracted services 245,608 219,448 90,208 26,047 25,556 14.0 14.0 5.9 2.0 2.1

Utilities 52,059 73,751 122,861 112,588 89,056 3.0 4.7 8.0 8.8 7.2

Surface water fees 19,199 19,199 18,341 19,199 19,199 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.5 1.6

Repairs, maintenance and 

    other operating expenditures 820,606 649,090 489,064 219,107 341,677 46.7 41.4 32.0 17.0 27.8

Administrative expenditures 118,496 102,698 85,417 71,974 58,068 6.7 6.6 5.6 5.6 4.7

Capital outlay 0 0 0 535,085 1,822,897 0.0 0.0 0.0 41.6 147.8

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,878,227 1,650,072 1,285,731 1,614,816 2,932,759 106.8 105.4 84.0 125.5 237.9

     EXCESS REVENUES (EXPENDITURES) $ (119,347) $ (84,350) $ 242,881 $ (328,469) $(1,699,974) (6.8) % (5.4) % 16.0 % (25.5) % (137.9 %

TOTAL ACTIVE RETAIL WATER CONNECTIONS 930 955 952 933 934

TOTAL ACTIVE RETAIL

    WASTEWATER CONNECTIONS 915 935 952 924 915

See accompanying independent auditor’s report. 36



DRAFTRIVER PLANTATION MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT

COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES,
DEBT SERVICE FUND

FOR YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30

AMOUNT PERCENT OF TOTAL REVENUES

2024 2023 2022* 2021 2020 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020

REVENUES

Property taxes $ 542,135 $ 491,485 $ 0 91.6 % 95.0 % 0.0 % % %

Penalty and interest 23,782 3,136 2,310 4.0 0.6 100.0

Interest on deposits and investments 25,896 22,800 0 4.4 4.4 0.0

TOTAL REVENUES 591,813 517,421 2,310 100.0 100.0 100.0

EXPENDITURES

Current:

Professional fees 8,313 0 0 1.4 0.0 0.0

Contracted services 472 0 0 0.1 0.0 0.0

Other expenditures 0 0 0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Debt service:

Principal retirement 145,000 50,000 15,000 24.5 9.7 649.4

Interest and fees 349,894 432,710 25,962 59.1 83.6 1123.9

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 503,679 482,710 40,962 85.1 93.3 1773.3

     EXCESS REVENUES (EXPENDITURES) $ 88,134 $ 34,711 $ (38,652) 14.9 % 6.7 % (1,673. % % %

          *First year of financial activity.

See accompanying independent auditor’s report. 37



DRAFT

38

RIVER PLANTATION MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT

BOARD MEMBERS, KEY PERSONNEL AND CONSULTANTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

Complete District Mailing Address:  River Plantation Municipal Utility District 
P.O. Box 747
Conroe, Texas  77305           

District Business Telephone No.: 936-273-4641

Submission date of the most recent District Registration Form: July 26, 2024

Limit on Fees of Office that a Director may receive during a fiscal year:  $7,200

BOARD MEMBERS

Name and Address

Term of 
Office

(Elected/
Appointed)

Fees of
Office
Paid

Title at
Year End

Expense
Reimb.

Julie Gilmer
P.O. Box 747
Conroe, Texas  77305 

Elected
5/07/22-
 5/02/26  President$ 0 $ 2,123

Timothy Goodman
P.O. Box 747
Conroe, Texas  77305 

Elected
5/07/22-
 5/02/26  

Vice 
President3,600 959

Karl Sakocius
P.O. Box 747
Conroe, Texas  77305 

Elected
5/07/22-
 5/02/26   Secretary0 0

Thomas Vandever
P.O. Box 747
Conroe, Texas  77305 

Elected
5/04/24-
 5/06/28  

Treasurer/
Investment

Officer0 0

Mark Denham  
P.O. Box 747
Conroe, Texas  77305 

Elected
5/04/24-
 5/06/28  

Assistant
Secretary0 0

See accompanying independent auditor’s report. 



DRAFT

39

RIVER PLANTATION MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT

BOARD MEMBERS, KEY PERSONNEL AND CONSULTANTS (Continued)

SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

CONSULTANTS

Name and Address
Date
Hired

Fees and Expense
Reimbursements

Title at
Year End

Smith, Murdaugh, Little
     & Bonham, L.L.P.
2727 Allen Parkway, Suite 1100
Houston, Texas 77019           2008 $ 183,502 Attorney

Perdue, Brandon, Fielder,
Collins & Mott, L.L.P.
1235 N. Loop West, Suite 600
Houston, Texas  77008

Delinquent
Tax

Attorney
Prior to

2012 8,313

Municipal Accounts & Consulting, L.P.
611 Longmire Road, Suite 1
Conroe, Texas   77304 Bookkeeper10/01/13 52,084

Municipal Operations & Consulting, Inc.
27316 Spectrum Way
Oak Ridge, Texas  77385 4/28/22 600,438 Operator

Vogler & Spencer Engineering, Inc.
777 North Eldridge Parkway, Suite 500
Houston, Texas 77079 1/11/21 620,439 Engineer

Tammy J. McRae
Montgomery County TAC Tax
400 N. San Jacinto Assessor-
Conroe,  Texas  77301 2/01/96 472 Collector

Montgomery Central
    Appraisal District
P.O. Box 2233
Conroe, Texas  77305

Legislative
Action   

Central
Appraisal
District12,535

Rathmann & Associates, L.P.
8584 Katy Freeway, Suite 250
Houston, Texas    77024

Financial
Advisor7/25/24 0

RBC Capital Markets, LLC
609 Main Street, Suite 3600
Houston, Texas   77002

Financial
Advisor

Replaced
7/25/24 0

Mark C. Eyring, CPA, PLLC
12702 Century Drive, Suite C2
Stafford, Texas  77477

Independent
Auditor9/27/12 12,300

See accompanying independent auditor’s report.



 1 
09402-002     587928.1 

RIVER PLANTATION MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT 
 

Resolution Affirming Review 
of Investment Policy, Strategies and Objectives 

 
The Board of Directors (“Board”) of River Plantation Municipal Utility District 

(“District”) met at the Board’s regular meeting place on January 22, 2025, with a quorum of 

directors present, as follows: 

Julie Gilmer, President  
Timothy Goodman, Vice President 
Karl Sakocius, Secretary 
Thomas Vandever, Treasurer  
Mark V. Denham, Director 

 
and the following absent: 
 

None 
 

when the following business was transacted: 

Whereas, the District is required by the Public Funds Investment Act, Tex. Gov’t. 

Code Chapter 2256 (the “Act”) to adopt an investment policy for the purchase and management 

of investments for District funds; and  

Whereas, Section 2256.005 (e) of the Act and the District’s investment policy 

requires that the District review its investment policy, strategies and objectives not less than 

annually; and 

Whereas, as a part of the District’s 2024 fiscal year end audit review, the District 

has reviewed its investment policy, strategies and objectives and has determined that the policy 

should remain in effect with no changes. 

Whereas, as a part of its annual review, the District shall review, revise if necessary, 

and adopt a list of qualified brokers that are authorized to engage in investment transactions with 

the District. 



 2 
09402-002     587928.1 

Whereas, the District has determined that the brokers listed on Exhibit “A” are 

qualified and authorized to engage in investment transactions with the District.  

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board of Directors of the District as 

follows: 

1. In accordance with Section 2256.005(e) of the Act and the District’s 

investment policy, the investment policy and the investment strategies and objectives of the 

District have been reviewed by the Board. 

2. The Board has determined that the investment policy and investment 

strategies and objectives of the District are appropriate for the District’s purposes and should not 

be changed. 

3. The brokers listed on Exhibit “A” are qualified and authorized to engage in 

investment transactions with the District.  

The president or vice president is authorized to execute and the secretary, assistant 

secretary or secretary pro tempore to attest this Resolution on behalf of the District. 

 
       JULIE GILMER 
       _________________________________  
       President 
ATTEST: 
 
KARL SAKOCIUS 
    
Secretary  



 3 
09402-002     587928.1 

I, the undersigned Secretary of the Board of Directors of River Plantation Municipal 

Utility District, hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of the resolution adopted 

by said Board at its meeting of January 22, 2025, and a minute entry of that date showing the 

adoption thereof, the original of which resolution appears in the minute book of said Board, on file 

in the District’s office.   

I further certify that said meeting was open to the public, and that notice thereof 

was posted in compliance with the provisions of Tex. Gov’t. Code Ann. § 551.001 et seq. 

Witness my hand and seal of said District, this January 22, 2025. 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Secretary 

 
 

  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 4 
09402-002     587928.1 

Exhibit “A” 
Qualified List of Brokers 

 

 
 
 
 
  



December, 2024

Connections:
Vacant: 42

REVENUE: Water LSGCD Sewer TCEQ Taps Deposits Penalty Misc. TOTAL
29,950.67$    714.27$            31,632.39$  312.96$       -$             3,703.26$     994.54$         7,129.04$    74,437.13$     

BILLED CONS: Residential Builder/Temp Multi-Family Irrigation STP/LS Commercial Total
5,776,000 27,000 0 296,000 444,000 45,000 6,588,000

 
WATER: 11/18/24 - 12/18/24 LSGCD - Well Permit
Gallons pumped from Well No.2 4,246,000 Permit Expires: 12/31/2024
Gallons pumped from Well No.3 2,904,000 Permitted Authorization: 225,868,339
Total Pumpage 7,150,000 December Withdrawal: 6,638,000
Total Gallons Billed 6,588,000 Y-T-D Withdrawal: 104,679,000
Leaks, Construction, Flushing 30,000 Amount Remaining: 121,189,339
Pumped vs. Billed 92%
Pumped vs. Accounted 93%
Leaks repaired in District 3

Bacteriological samples: 6 Good

WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT
T.C.E.Q. Permit Number: WQ0010978001
Permit expiration date: January 2, 2029

December, 2024 Measured by:
Average daily flow 339,065 Permitted Daily Flow 600,000 gal.per day
Average CBOD 3.05 Permitted CBOD 10 mg/l
Average Total Suspended Solids 7.98 Permitted T.S.S. 15 mg/l
Average Ammonia Nitrogen 1.25 Permitted Ammonia Nitrogen 3 mg/l
Average PH 7.05 Permitted PH 6.00 - 9.00 STD UNIT
Average Dissolved Oxygen 7.3 Permitted Dissolved Oxygen (Min.) 6.0 mg/l
Maximum Chlorine Residual 3.91 Permitted Chlorine Maximum 4.0 mg/l
Minimum Chlorine Residual 1.6 Permitted Chlorine Minimum 1.0 mg/l
Average E. coli 5.00 Permitted E. coli 63.0 mpn/100 ml
Total Rainfall 7.27"
Sewer Treatment plant is currently operating at 57% of the permitted capacity.

Total gallons of Reuse for the month of December - 1.505 MG
Reuse revenue - $1087.20

Aged Receivables: Current 30 day 60 day 90 day 120 day Total
58,727.98$      28.76$                1,013.00$      936.74$         719.09$         61,425.57$     

MONTHLY OPERATIONS REPORT FOR RIVER PLANTATION MUD

977

0%

50%

100%

150%

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Water Accountability

2023

2024

0
200
400
600
800

1000

0k - 10k 10k - 20k 20k -30k 30k -40k 40k - 50k 50k - over

# 
of

 U
se

rs

Gallons

Consumption



F
or

m
 A

pp
ro

ve
d 

O
M

B
 N

o.
 2

04
0-

00
04

 e
xp

ire
s 

on
 0

7/
31

/2
02

6
D

M
R

 C
o

p
y 

o
f 

R
ec

o
rd

E
P

A
 m

ay
 m

ak
e 

al
l t

he
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
su

bm
itt

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

is
 fo

rm
 (

in
cl

ud
in

g 
al

l a
tta

ch
m

en
ts

) 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

to
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 w
ith

ou
t f

ur
th

er
 n

ot
ic

e 
to

 y
ou

. D
o 

no
t u

se
 th

is
 o

nl
in

e 
fo

rm
 to

 s
ub

m
it 

pe
rs

on
al

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

(e
.g

., 
no

n-
bu

si
ne

ss
 c

el
l p

ho
ne

 n
um

be
r 

or
 n

on
-b

us
in

es
s 

em
ai

l a
dd

re
ss

),
 c

on
fid

en
tia

l b
us

in
es

s
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
(C

B
I)

, o
r 

if 
yo

u 
in

te
nd

 to
 a

ss
er

t a
 C

B
I c

la
im

 o
n 

an
y 

of
 th

e 
su

bm
itt

ed
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n.
 P

ur
su

an
t t

o 
40

 C
F

R
 2

.2
03

(a
),

 E
P

A
 is

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 y

ou
 w

ith
 n

ot
ic

e 
th

at
 a

ll 
C

B
I c

la
im

s 
m

us
t b

e 
as

se
rt

ed
 a

t t
he

 ti
m

e 
of

 s
ub

m
is

si
on

. E
P

A
 c

an
no

t a
cc

om
m

od
at

e 
a 

la
te

 C
B

I c
la

im
 to

 c
ov

er
 p

re
vi

ou
sl

y 
su

bm
itt

ed
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n
be

ca
us

e 
ef

fo
rt

s 
to

 p
ro

te
ct

 th
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ar
e 

no
t a

dm
in

is
tr

at
iv

el
y 

pr
ac

tic
ab

le
 s

in
ce

 it
 m

ay
 a

lre
ad

y 
be

 d
is

cl
os

ed
 to

 th
e 

pu
bl

ic
. A

lth
ou

gh
 w

e 
do

 n
ot

 fo
re

se
e 

a 
ne

ed
 fo

r 
pe

rs
on

s 
to

 a
ss

er
t a

 c
la

im
 o

f C
B

I b
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
ty

pe
s 

of
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
re

qu
es

te
d 

in
 th

is
 fo

rm
, i

f p
er

so
ns

 w
is

h 
to

 a
ss

er
t a

 C
B

I c
la

im
 w

e 
di

re
ct

su
bm

itt
er

s 
to

 c
on

ta
ct

 th
e 

 fo
r 

fu
rt

he
r 

gu
id

an
ce

. P
le

as
e 

no
te

 th
at

 E
P

A
 m

ay
 c

on
ta

ct
 y

ou
 a

fte
r 

yo
u 

su
bm

it 
th

is
 r

ep
or

t f
or

 m
or

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n.
N

P
D

E
S

 e
R

ep
or

tin
g 

H
el

p 
D

es
k

T
hi

s 
co

lle
ct

io
n 

of
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
is

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
by

 O
M

B
 u

nd
er

 th
e 

P
ap

er
w

or
k 

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
A

ct
, 4

4 
U

.S
.C

. 3
50

1 
et

 s
eq

. (
O

M
B

 C
on

tr
ol

 N
o.

 2
04

0-
00

04
).

 R
es

po
ns

es
 to

 th
is

 c
ol

le
ct

io
n 

of
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
ar

e 
m

an
da

to
ry

 in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

is
 p

er
m

it 
an

d 
E

P
A

 N
P

D
E

S
 r

eg
ul

at
io

ns
 4

0 
C

F
R

 1
22

.4
1(

l)(
4)

(i)
. A

n 
ag

en
cy

 m
ay

 n
ot

co
nd

uc
t o

r 
sp

on
so

r,
 a

nd
 a

 p
er

so
n 

is
 n

ot
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

to
 r

es
po

nd
 to

, a
 c

ol
le

ct
io

n 
of

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

un
le

ss
 it

 d
is

pl
ay

s 
a 

cu
rr

en
tly

 v
al

id
 O

M
B

 c
on

tr
ol

 n
um

be
r.

 T
he

 p
ub

lic
 r

ep
or

tin
g 

an
d 

re
co

rd
ke

ep
in

g 
bu

rd
en

 fo
r 

th
is

 c
ol

le
ct

io
n 

of
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
ar

e 
es

tim
at

ed
 to

 a
ve

ra
ge

 2
 h

ou
rs

 p
er

 o
ut

fa
ll.

 S
en

d 
co

m
m

en
ts

 o
n 

th
e 

A
ge

nc
y'

s
ne

ed
 fo

r 
th

is
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n,
 th

e 
ac

cu
ra

cy
 o

f t
he

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
bu

rd
en

 e
st

im
at

es
 a

nd
 a

ny
 s

ug
ge

st
ed

 m
et

ho
ds

 fo
r 

m
in

im
iz

in
g 

re
sp

on
de

nt
 b

ur
de

n 
to

 th
e 

R
eg

ul
at

or
y 

S
up

po
rt

 D
iv

is
io

n 
D

ire
ct

or
, U

.S
. E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
A

ge
nc

y 
(2

82
1T

),
 1

20
0 

P
en

ns
yl

va
ni

a 
A

ve
., 

N
W

, W
as

hi
ng

to
n,

 D
.C

. 2
04

60
. I

nc
lu

de
 th

e 
O

M
B

co
nt

ro
l n

um
be

r 
in

 a
ny

 c
or

re
sp

on
de

nc
e.

 D
o 

no
t s

en
d 

th
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 fo

rm
 to

 th
is

 a
dd

re
ss

.

P
er

m
it

P
er

m
it

 #
:

T
X

00
25

67
4

P
er

m
it

te
e:

R
IV

E
R

 P
LA

N
T

A
T

IO
N

 M
U

D
F

ac
ili

ty
:

R
IV

E
R

 P
LA

N
T

A
T

IO
N

 M
U

D
 W

W
T

F

M
aj

o
r:

N
o

P
er

m
it

te
e 

A
d

d
re

ss
:

27
27

 A
LL

E
N

 P
K

W
Y

 S
U

T
IE

 1
10

0
H

O
U

S
T

O
N

, T
X

 7
70

19
F

ac
ili

ty
 L

o
ca

ti
o

n
:

62
3 

R
IV

E
R

 P
LA

N
T

A
T

IO
N

 D
R

C
O

N
R

O
E

, T
X

 7
73

02

P
er

m
it

te
d

 F
ea

tu
re

:
00

1
E

xt
er

na
l O

ut
fa

ll
D

is
ch

ar
g

e:
00

1-
A

D
O

M
E

S
T

IC
 F

A
C

IL
IT

Y
 -

 0
01

R
ep

o
rt

 D
at

es
 &

 S
ta

tu
s

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 P
er

io
d

:
F

ro
m

 1
2/

01
/2

4 
to

 1
2/

31
/2

4
D

M
R

 D
u

e 
D

at
e:

01
/2

0/
25

S
ta

tu
s:

N
et

D
M

R
 V

al
id

at
ed

C
o

n
si

d
er

at
io

n
s 

fo
r 

F
o

rm
 C

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n

P
ri

n
ci

p
al

 E
xe

cu
ti

ve
 O

ff
ic

er

F
ir

st
 N

am
e:

T
it

le
:

T
el

ep
h

o
n

e:

L
as

t 
N

am
e:

N
o

 D
at

a 
In

d
ic

at
o

r 
(N

O
D

I)

F
o

rm
 N

O
D

I:
--

P
ar

am
et

er
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 L

o
ca

ti
o

n
S

ea
so

n
 #

P
ar

am
. N

O
D

I
Q

u
an

ti
ty

 o
r 

L
o

ad
in

g
Q

u
al

it
y 

o
r 

C
o

n
ce

n
tr

at
io

n
# 

o
f 

E
x.

F
re

q
u

en
cy

 o
f 

A
n

al
ys

is
S

am
p

le
 T

yp
e

C
o

d
e

N
am

e
Q

u
al

if
ie

r 
1

V
al

u
e 

1
Q

u
al

if
ie

r 
2

V
al

u
e 

2
U

n
it

s
Q

u
al

if
ie

r 
1

V
al

u
e 

1
Q

u
al

if
ie

r 
2

V
al

u
e 

2
Q

u
al

if
ie

r 
3

V
al

u
e 

3
U

n
it

s

00
30

0
O

xy
g

en
, d

is
so

lv
ed

 [
D

O
]

1 
- 

E
ffl

ue
nt

 G
ro

ss
0

--

S
am

p
le

=
7.

3
19

 -
 m

g/
L

0

01
/0

7 
- 

W
ee

kl
y

G
R

 -
 G

ra
b

P
er

m
it

 R
eq

.
>

=
6.

0 
M

O
 M

IN
19

 -
 m

g/
L

01
/0

7 
- 

W
ee

kl
y

G
R

 -
 G

ra
b

V
al

u
e 

N
O

D
I

00
40

0
p

H
1 

- 
E

ffl
ue

nt
 G

ro
ss

0
--

S
am

p
le

=
6.

9
=

7.
2

12
 -

 S
U

0

02
/3

0 
- 

T
w

ic
e 

P
er

 M
on

th
G

R
 -

 G
ra

b

P
er

m
it

 R
eq

.
>

=
6.

0 
M

IN
IM

U
M

<
=

9.
0 

M
A

X
IM

U
M

12
 -

 S
U

02
/3

0 
- 

T
w

ic
e 

P
er

 M
on

th
G

R
 -

 G
ra

b

V
al

u
e 

N
O

D
I

00
53

0
S

o
lid

s,
 t

o
ta

l s
u

sp
en

d
ed

1 
- 

E
ffl

ue
nt

 G
ro

ss
0

--

S
am

p
le

=
10

.7
26

 -
 lb

/d
=

7.
98

=
9.

4
19

 -
 m

g/
L

0

01
/0

7 
- 

W
ee

kl
y

C
P

 -
 C

om
po

si
te

P
er

m
it

 R
eq

.
<

=
75

.0
 D

A
IL

Y
 A

V
26

 -
 lb

/d
<

=
15

.0
 D

A
IL

Y
 A

V
<

=
40

.0
 D

A
IL

Y
 M

X
19

 -
 m

g/
L

01
/0

7 
- 

W
ee

kl
y

C
P

 -
 C

om
po

si
te

V
al

u
e 

N
O

D
I

00
61

0
N

it
ro

g
en

, a
m

m
o

n
ia

 t
o

ta
l [

as
 N

]
1 

- 
E

ffl
ue

nt
 G

ro
ss

0
--

S
am

p
le

=
2.

31
26

 -
 lb

/d
=

1.
25

=
2.

8
19

 -
 m

g/
L

0

01
/0

7 
- 

W
ee

kl
y

C
P

 -
 C

om
po

si
te

P
er

m
it

 R
eq

.
<

=
15

.0
 D

A
IL

Y
 A

V
26

 -
 lb

/d
<

=
3.

0 
D

A
IL

Y
 A

V
<

=
10

.0
 D

A
IL

Y
 M

X
19

 -
 m

g/
L

01
/0

7 
- 

W
ee

kl
y

C
P

 -
 C

om
po

si
te

V
al

u
e 

N
O

D
I

50
05

0
F

lo
w

, i
n

 c
o

n
d

u
it

 o
r 

th
ru

 t
re

at
m

en
t 

p
la

n
t

1 
- 

E
ffl

ue
nt

 G
ro

ss
0

--

S
am

p
le

=
0.

33
90

65
=

0.
89

8
03

 -
 M

G
D

0

99
/9

9 
- 

C
on

tin
uo

us
T

M
 -

 T
ot

al
iz

er

P
er

m
it

 R
eq

.
<

=
0.

6 
D

A
IL

Y
 A

V
R

eq
 M

on
 D

A
IL

Y
 M

X
03

 -
 M

G
D

99
/9

9 
- 

C
on

tin
uo

us
T

M
 -

 T
ot

al
iz

er

V
al

u
e 

N
O

D
I

50
06

0
C

h
lo

ri
n

e,
 t

o
ta

l r
es

id
u

al
1 

- 
E

ffl
ue

nt
 G

ro
ss

0
--

S
am

p
le

=
1.

6
=

3.
91

19
 -

 m
g/

L

0

01
/0

1 
- 

D
ai

ly
G

R
 -

 G
ra

b

P
er

m
it

 R
eq

.
>

=
1.

0 
M

O
 M

IN
<

=
4.

0 
M

O
 M

A
X

19
 -

 m
g/

L
01

/0
1 

- 
D

ai
ly

G
R

 -
 G

ra
b

V
al

u
e 

N
O

D
I

51
04

0
E

.c
o

li
1 

- 
E

ffl
ue

nt
 G

ro
ss

0
--

S
am

p
le

=
5.

0
=

21
.0

30
 -

 M
P

N
/1

00
m

L

0

02
/3

0 
- 

T
w

ic
e 

P
er

 M
on

th
G

R
 -

 G
ra

b

P
er

m
it

 R
eq

.
<

=
63

.0
 D

A
IL

Y
 A

V
<

=
20

0.
0 

D
A

IL
Y

 M
X

30
 -

 M
P

N
/1

00
m

L
02

/3
0 

- 
T

w
ic

e 
P

er
 M

on
th

G
R

 -
 G

ra
b

V
al

u
e 

N
O

D
I

80
08

2
B

O
D

, c
ar

b
o

n
ac

eo
u

s 
[5

 d
ay

, 2
0 

C
]

1 
- 

E
ffl

ue
nt

 G
ro

ss
0

--

S
am

p
le

=
4.

32
26

 -
 lb

/d
=

3.
05

=
5.

2
19

 -
 m

g/
L

0

01
/0

7 
- 

W
ee

kl
y

C
P

 -
 C

om
po

si
te

P
er

m
it

 R
eq

.
<

=
50

.0
 D

A
IL

Y
 A

V
26

 -
 lb

/d
<

=
10

.0
 D

A
IL

Y
 A

V
<

=
25

.0
 D

A
IL

Y
 M

X
19

 -
 m

g/
L

01
/0

7 
- 

W
ee

kl
y

C
P

 -
 C

om
po

si
te

V
al

u
e 

N
O

D
I

S
u

b
m

is
si

o
n

 N
o

te

If 
a 

pa
ra

m
et

er
 r

ow
 d

oe
s 

no
t c

on
ta

in
 a

ny
 v

al
ue

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
S

am
pl

e 
no

r 
E

ffl
ue

nt
 T

ra
di

ng
, t

he
n 

no
ne

 o
f t

he
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

fie
ld

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
su

bm
itt

ed
 fo

r 
th

at
 r

ow
: U

ni
ts

, N
um

be
r 

of
 E

xc
ur

si
on

s,
 F

re
qu

en
cy

 o
f A

na
ly

si
s,

 a
nd

 S
am

pl
e 

T
yp

e.

E
d

it
 C

h
ec

k 
E

rr
o

rs

N
o 

er
ro

rs
.



C
o

m
m

en
ts

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

ts
N

o 
at

ta
ch

m
en

ts
.

R
ep

o
rt

 L
as

t 
S

av
ed

 B
y

R
IV

E
R

 P
L

A
N

T
A

T
IO

N
 M

U
D

U
se

r:
E

A
S

T
E

X
D

M
R

C
T

N
am

e:
C

as
si

e 
   

T
ar

ro
n

E
-M

ai
l:

ct
ar

ro
n.

ea
st

ex
@

gm
ai

l.c
om

D
at

e/
T

im
e:

20
25

-0
1-

09
  0

7:
42

   
(T

im
e 

Z
on

e:
 -

06
:0

0)

R
ep

o
rt

 L
as

t 
S

ig
n

ed
 B

y

U
se

r:
M

R
IV

E
R

A
14

N
am

e:
M

ar
cu

s 
   

R
iv

er
a

E
-M

ai
l:

m
riv

er
a@

m
un

ic
ip

al
op

s.
co

m

D
at

e/
T

im
e:

20
25

-0
1-

13
  1

6:
12

   
(T

im
e 

Z
on

e:
 -

06
:0

0)



 

RIVER PLANTATION MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT 

ENGINEER’S REPORT 

VSE Project No. 32000-000-0-DST 

January 22, 2025, 6:30 p.m. 

 

Engineering Representative:   Taylor J. Reed, P.E. 

 

Directors:   Julie Gilmer, President 

  Tim Goodman, Vice President 

  Tom Vandever, Treasurer 

Karl Sakocius, Secretary 

Mark Denham, Asst. Secretary 

 

 

08.  Items for Discussion: 
 

I. Permits 
 

A. WWTF Discharge Permit Renewal (Expires September 2028) 

1. No update 
 

B. Storm Water Quality Management Plan – MS4 Permit (Expires January 
2024) 

1. We received the draft of the permit and are currently reviewing it.  
 

C. Water Plant No. 1 – Water Well No. 1 Testing 

1. Testing and Inspection due January 12, 2026 
 

D. Emergency Operation Information 

1. Update as necessary. 
 



River Plantation MUD 

Engineer’s Report 

January 22, 2025 

Page 2 of 3 
 

 

 

II. Design Projects 

A. Joint Projects 

1. East Ditch FEMA Work (No Update) 

a) FEMA sent back the corrections and requested clarification. We 
have still not received the revised agreement.   

b) Design underway. Awaiting the cleanout of the channel to 
perform final inspections to ensure all damage has been 
addressed by the proposed plans.  

2. East Ditch Maintenance  

a) We are working on soliciting bids from multiple contractors. 
The holidays made this difficult, but plan to have bids for the 
February meeting.  

3. WWTP Rehabilitation and Electrical Upgrades 

a) Construction underway. The contractor has been pulling wires 
and setting up the new MCC controls.  

b) No pay application this month.  

4. Holly Springs Drainage Issue 

a) We are waiting for the final pay application.  

B. District Projects 

1. Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Phase 2 

a) Construction underway.  No pay application this month.   

2. Charleston Park Irrigation Maintenance – No Update 

a) I have not received any verification that the electrical was 
completed for the Sprinkler system. I will continue to reach out 
to the contractor for an update.  

3. Water Plant No. 2 Electrical Upgrades 

a) Project is substantially complete. We held a site walk and 
punch list was generated that the contractor is working on 
completing 

4. Plantation Village Drainage Improvements  

a) Construction underway.  

5. FEMA Public Assistance for April-June Declaration – No Update 

a) FEMA awarded the District approximately $24K for the 
generator run times due to power outages. We have submitted 
the paperwork for approval and funding.  

6. BAR No. 10 - $8,050,00 

a) We have sent the report for review by the attorney and 
financial advisor.   



River Plantation MUD 

Engineer’s Report 

January 22, 2025 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 

 

7. Sanitary Sinkholes 

a) The contractor has performed their preconstruction 
inspections and will begin work shortly.  

III. Other Matters 
A. 10 Year CIP (No Update) 

IV. Questions/Answers 
1. 703 Fairway Oaks Storm Sewer Failure 

a) Still working on a plausible cost-effective solution.  

2. Lot Acquisition  

a) Coordinating with the attorney as needed.   

3. 726 Stonewall Jackson Sinkhole 

a) Looking into sinkhole. Operator dye tested and confirmed that 
it was a storm sewer issue and we are going to televise the line 
to see the extent of the damage.  



09402-002     587707.1 1 

RIVER PLANTATION MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT 

Order Adopting Residence Homestead Exemption 
for Persons Sixty-Five or Older or Disabled 

 
 The board of directors (“Board”) of River Plantation Municipal Utility District 

(“District”) met at the Board’s regular meeting place on January 22, 2025, with the following 

Directors present: 

Julie Gilmer, President  
Timothy Goodman, Vice President 
Karl Sakocius, Secretary 
Thomas Vandever, Treasurer  
Mark V. Denham, Director 

 
and the following directors absent: 

 None 
 
when the following business was transacted: 

The Order set out below was introduced for consideration of the Board.  It was duly 

moved, seconded and unanimously carried that the following Order be adopted: 

Whereas, pursuant to Texas Property Tax Code, Section 11.13 an individual is 

entitled to an exemption from taxation as set forth therein; 

Whereas, the Board of Directors of the District has determined that it is in the public 

interest for said District, to provide the residence homestead exemption for persons 65 or older or 

disabled, as defined by Texas Property Tax Code Section 11.3. 

It is, therefore, ordered by the Board of Directors of the District, as follows: 

Pursuant to the provisions of Texas Property Tax Code Section 11.13(d), this Board 

does hereby exempt $25,000 of the market value of each residence homestead within the District of 

an individual who is disabled or is 65 years of age or older from all ad valorem taxes levied by the 



09402-002     587707.1 2 

District for the year 2025 subject to the terms and conditions set out below and, where applicable, 

the compliance therewith by the owner of the residence homestead, hereinafter called “applicant.” 

The exemption above set out shall be granted upon the following terms and 

conditions: 

Such exemption shall extend only to applicant’s residence homestead as same is 

defined by Texas Property Tax Code Section 11.3. 

To be eligible for the exemption, applicant must be disabled or have attained the age 

of 65 or over by January 1 of the year for which the exemption is sought; provided, however, that if 

applicant’s spouse has attained such age by such date, applicant shall be entitled to the exemption 

regardless of applicant’s age. 

Applicant shall file with the Appraisal District for the County in which the homestead 

is located on or before July 1 of the year for which the exemption is claimed all information required 

by the Appraisal District to determine eligibility for the exemption.   

 Passed, ordered and approved as the date first written above. 

      JULIE GILMER 

             

       President 
 
ATTEST: 

 
KARL SAKOCIUS 
_________________________________ 
Secretary 
  



09402-002     587707.1 3 

 
I, the undersigned secretary of the Board of Directors of River Plantation Municipal 

Utility District, hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of the Order Adopting 

Residence Homestead Exemption for Persons Sixty-Five or Older or Disabled, the original of which 

instrument, dated January 22, 2025, appears in the official minute book of the Board, on file and 

open to the public at the office of the District. 

I further certify that said meeting was open to the public, and that notice thereof was 

posted in compliance with the provisions of Tex. Gov’t. Code Ann.§ 551.001 et seq. 

Witness my hand and the seal of said District, this January 22, 2025. 

 

____________________________________________ 

Secretary 

 

        
 

 



 

 
 

09402-002     587736.1 1 

RIVER PLANTATION MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT 
 

Order Rescinding Meeting Places Outside District and  
Designating Additional Meeting Places Outside District 

 

 The Board of Directors (“Board”) of River Plantation Municipal Utility District (the 

“District”) met at the Board’s regular meeting place on January 22, 2025, with a quorum of 

directors present, as follows: 

Julie Gilmer, President  
Timothy Goodman, Vice President 
Karl Sakocius, Secretary 
Thomas Vandever, Treasurer  
Mark V. Denham, Director 

 
and the following absent: 
 
  None 

when the following business was transacted: 

The order set out below was introduced and considered by the Board.  It was then moved, 

seconded and unanimously carried that the following order be adopted: 

  WHEREAS, the District is a conservation and reclamation district and a political 

subdivision of the State of Texas created and operating pursuant to the provisions of Chapters 49 

and 54, Texas Water Code and Article XVI, Section 59 of the Texas Constitution; and  

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 49.062(a), Texas Water Code, the Board shall designate 

and maintain one or more regular offices for conducting the business of the District and for 

maintaining the records of the District; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 49.062(b), Texas Water Code, the Board shall designate 

one or more places inside or outside the District for conducting the meetings of the Board and 

shall declare the same to be a public place and invite the public to attend any meeting of the 

Board; and 



 

 
 

09402-002     587736.1 2 

WHEREAS, meetings of the Board are conducted in accordance with the open meetings 

law, Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, and notices of such meetings are provided in 

accordance with such law;  

WHEREAS, the Board has previously designated 610 River Plantation Drive, Conroe, 

Montgomery County, Texas as an office and meeting place inside the District and which the 

Board has declared to be a public place and to which the Board has invited the public to attend 

any meeting of the Board; and  

WHEREAS, the Board has previously designated 2727 Allen Parkway, Suite 1100, 

Houston, Texas 77019, as an office of the District for conducting the business of the District and 

for maintaining the records of the District. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

RIVER PLANTATION MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT THAT: 

Section 1: The Board hereby finds and determines that the matters and facts recited 

above are true and correct.   

Section 2: The Board hereby establishes (1) 2727 Allen Parkway, Suite 1075, (2) 

2727 Allen Parkway, Ground Level Meeting Room; (3) 2777 Allen Parkway, Plaza Level 

Meeting Room; and (4) 3300 Smith Street, all located in Houston, Harris County, Texas and 

outside the boundaries of the District, as meeting places of the Board of Directors of the District.  

Said meeting places are each hereby declared to be a public place and the public is invited to 

attend any meeting of the Board.  Said meeting places are to provide alternate meeting locations 

convenient to interested members of the public.  

Section 3: The Board hereby reaffirms its previous designation of 610 River 

Plantation Drive, Conroe, Montgomery County, Texas as an office and meeting place inside the 



 

 
 

09402-002     587736.1 3 

District and which the Board has declared to be a public place and to which the Board has invited 

the public to attend any meeting of the Board;  

Section 4: The Board hereby reaffirms its previous designation of 2727 Allen 

Parkway, Suite 1100, Houston, Texas 77019, as an office of the District for conducting the 

business of the District and for maintaining the records of the District. 

Section 6: Notice of this order shall be given as provided by law. 

PASSED and APPROVED this January 22, 2025. 

 
 
       JULIE GILMER  
              
ATTEST:      President 
 
 
KARL SAKOCIUS 
_______________________________ 
Secretary 



 

09402-002     587736.1 

 I, the undersigned Secretary of the Board of Directors of River Plantation Municipal 

Utility District, hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of the Order 

Rescinding Meeting Places Outside District and Designating Additional Meeting Places Outside 

District adopted by said Board at its meeting of January 22, 2025, together with excerpts from 

the minutes of said Board’s meeting on that date showing the adoption of said Order, as same 

appear of record in the official minutes of the Board, on file in the District’s office. 

I further certify that said meeting was open to the public, and that notice thereof 

was posted in compliance with the provisions of Tex. Gov’t. Code Ann. § 551.001 et seq. 

Witness my hand and the official seal of said District, this January 22, 2025. 

 

 

       __________________________________  
Secretary      

 
 
  

 


	Insert from: "Depository Pledge Agreement with Central Bank.pdf"
	DEPOSITORY PLEDGE AGREEMENT
	Mailing Address of Central Bank:
	ADDENDUM A

	Insert from: "01.22.2025.pdf"
	River Planation Operations Report
	2024_12


